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Become a world’s respectable indoor sportswear
brand with a natural, healthy and joyful image.
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Advocate and promote an enjoyable and healthy
urban sports lifestyle.
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Bring an all-round, relaxing and joyful athletic life
experience to urban citizens.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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For the year ended 31 December/ HZEZ12B3181LFE Change (%)
As at 31 December ®’128318 2013 2012 2 %) (%)
Financial highlight (RMB million) HEREAREBET)
Turnover SR 1,021.5 848.1 20.5
Gross profit FEM 590.3 514.2 14.8
Profit before taxation FR e 81 ) 5 438.4 379.0 15.7
Profit attributable to equity shareholders & 7 AR ORI 15 1) 362.8 330.9 9.6
Earnings before interest, tax, PR ~ TR IR ~ HTE R

depreciation and amortization 1 85 A0 2 ) 445.1 386.0 15.3
Total equity attributable to BmRREGERRE

equity shareholders 1,396.1 1,052.1 32.7
Total assets mEE 1,578.9 1,268.1 24.5
Financial ratios a1 ¥ b =
Net debt to shareholders’ fund (%) FEBREERE TH X (%) Net cash Net cash N/A

BIRE FIRE AN

Interest coverage (times) mRE N = (BE) 1,100.8 668.3 b4.7
Financial information per share (RMB) SKRBEEN(AREIT
Earnings B 0.23 0.21 9.5
Dividends 2 0.09 0.08 12.5
Equity attributable to equity holders BREEARGRER 0.84 0.66 27.3
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
ESL-JU /S

Financial ratio BT FS EE R 2013 2012
Profitability ratios Billge htr =

Gross profit margin EUES 57.8% 60.6%
Net profit margin before interest and tax PR 2 M T 18 81 5 M X 43.0% 44.8%
Net profit margin Y & 35.5% 39.0%
Return on equity 18 m O 3R = 29.6% 34.3%
Return on total assets MEELQRX 25.5% 28.6%
Liquidity ratios MEAMEEHER

Current ratio TEN X 8.19 times 3 5.57 times 13
Quick ratio REN = 7.36 times & 5.10 times &
Stock turnover days FEEBOH 107.3 days B 110.6 days B
Debtors’ turnover days EWEE R EE B & 89.4 days B 99.7 days &
Creditors’ turnover days ERRERMREEDH 79.0 days & 86.2 days B
Capacity adequacy ratios BIRFTRBHE

Gearing ratio SR fu s N/A 3@ B 6.9%
Debt to net worth ratio B FEL= 4.4% 12.7%
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Mr. Shi Hongliu

Chairman & Executive Director
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Hosa International
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual report of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2013.

SRR :
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Forward

With the support of the senior management, staff and shareholders
of the Company, in 2013, the Group adhered to its long-term
development strategies, responded to the market changes actively
and successfully implemented its annual development strategies,
which in turn guaranteed the accomplishment of the expected
development targets and laid a strong foundation for its further
sustainable development in the future. In 2013, the Group boosted
its financial results through six ways, namely focusing on the
enhancement of its professional product research and development
capabilities, optimizing the structure of the products and brand,
exploring the professional sales channels, enhancing the
professional image of its brand and promoting its brand culture,
thereby further strengthening and enhancing the Company’s leading
role in China’s indoor sportswear market.
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The Group, as an enterprise with a brand mission of advocating and
promoting an enjoyable and healthy urban sports lifestyle, is
committed to performing the important corporate mission of
rewarding the society and fulfilling its corporate social
responsibilities while continuing to improve the results of operation
and shareholders’ returns. In 2013, the Group continued to promote
sports and exercises throughout the nation. As a major supporting
enterprise, we promoted some large-scale activities including the
promotion of all-round fitness in China. Meanwhile, we collaborated
with The Asian Fitness Academy to organize nearly a hundred
activities under the Vibrant Asia — Fitness Carnival Series in
colleges and universities and different cities nationally, with the aim
of spreading the culture of fitness, promoting the pervasiveness of
fitness activities nationwide and fulfilling the social responsibilities
through raising the health awareness and improving the health of
the PRC citizens.

Continued Financial Success

For the year of 2013, the Group continued to deliver better financial
performance with the turnover increased by 20.5% to RMB1,021.5
million, net profit increased by 9.6% to RMB362.8 million and basic
earnings per share increased by 9.5% to RMB23 cents, as compared
with the relevant financial figures of year 2012.

Based on these distinguished results, the Board has recommended
payment of a final dividend of HK6.6 cents [equivalent to
approximately RMB5.2 cents) per share.

Continuous Increase in Market Share

According to the report of "Market Analysis on China’s Indoor
Sportswear Industry” of Frost & Sullivan, in 2013, the market share
of our three product lines, namely fitness wear, swimwear and
sports underwear in China amounted to 8.4%, 10.5% and 44.1%
respectively, all of which ranked the first in their respective market
segments with our market share continuously increasing.
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Continuous Enhancement of Brand Position

In June 2013, "Hosa” brand was again recognized as one of the
China’s 500 Most Valuable Brands by the World Brand Lab, being
the only indoor sportswear brand clinching such honour. Our brand
value increased from RMB2.118 billion in 2012 to RMB2.836 billion.

Focusing on enhancing the brand personality as being natural,
healthy and joyful, the Group continued to carry out accurate and
highly efficient brand promotion campaign which focused on target
customers. In 2013, the Group organized a variety of exciting
promotional activities, which included "Hosa Swimwear Trends in
China”, "Hosa Stretch It Out — 5-day Yoga Spiritual Trip to India”,
“Hosa Cup China International Yoga Pilates Fitness Conference”,
“Stars in Danger”, a large-scale TV show of Jiangsu Satellite TV, “the
Biggest Loser”, a large scale TV programme on CCTV-2 and "Vibrant
Asia — Fitness Carnival” etc., receiving overwhelming market responses
and thus effectively enhancing the brand influence and professional
position of “Hosa" brand.

Continuous Strengthening of the
Competitiveness of Product Research and
Development

In 2013, the Group successfully created a globalized and specialized
research and development system formed by domestic and foreign
professional cooperating institutions including Hosa International
Beijing Design Centre, Hosa International Fujian Technology Centre,
French Design Studio, function and prototype expert team from
Japan as well as The Asian Fitness Academy, which enabled the
Group to continuously increase its competitive strength in terms of
professional design, fashion design, functional development and
technology of indoor sportswear and thus maintained the market
competitiveness of the Group’s products.
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Continuous Optimization of Outlet Network

In 2013, with the overall changes in market channels, the Group
continued to optimize the existing sales outlets, with particular
focus on the expansion of professional channels, including fitness
centers, yoga centers and swimming pools, and conducted accurate
and highly efficient sales promotion, in order to exert the advantages
of the Group, enhance the quality of retail outlets and operating
level, as well as expand the scale of sales. As at 31 December 2013,
the Group had 1,356 retail outlets in China throughout the year.

Continuous Enlargement of Market Scale

In 2013, the Group was authorized by The Beijing National Aquatics
Centre to introduce the "Water Cube” brand apparels officially. The
newly introduced “Water Cube” brand apparels serve as a
supplement to our "Hosa” Brand swimsuits which target the mid-
to-high end markets. The new launch enlarged the customer base
and enhanced the control of channels of the Group’s swimwear
products, further increased the market share and enhanced the
competitiveness of the Group’s swimwear products. In terms of
fitness wears, the Group focused on the need of its target
consumers. On the basis of continually enhancing the development
of professional fitness wear, the Group has commenced to enrich
the product mix of fitness wear lifestyle series. The continuous
launch of such type of products will also enlarge the Group’s market
scale effectively.

Future Growth Strategy

Looking forward, there will still be tremendous room for growth in
the PRC indoor sportswear market, and the growth of demand will
remain strong. The construction of indoor stadiums, which was
driven by the urbanization in the PRC, the increasing health
awareness of consumers, the growing popularity of indoor sports
among urbanites, the promotion of sports and exercises throughout
the nation, the increase in consumer demand for products that
portray professionalism, the gradual incorporation of swimming
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class as compulsory subject by schools in different provinces and
cities and the gradual implementation of the support policies
developed by the PRC government in respect of the healthcare
service industry will continue to provide considerable development
opportunities for the Group. In addition, the apparel market has
demonstrated an obvious trend of market segmentation and product
professionization, which will in turn provide enormous opportunities
to the Group which specializes in professional and functional
apparels such as fitness wear, swimwear and sports underwear.
According to the forecast made by Frost & Sullivan in the report of
“Market Analysis on China’s Indoor Sportswear Industry”, the
compound annual growth rate of fitness wear market is expected to
remain at the high level of 34.5%, the compound annual growth rate
of swimwear market is expected to remain at 18.9% and the
compound annual growth rate of sports underwear market is
expected to remain at 19.3% in the coming 5 years. By 2018, based
on ex-factory sales, the market scale of fitness wear, swimwear and
sports underwear will amount to RMB15 billion, RMB6.9 billion and
RMB1.65 billion respectively.

In 2014, the Group will continue to focus on the indoor sports
products market and enhance and increase its competitive
strengths by seizing development opportunities and market
opportunities. It will strive to promote its steady and rapid growth on
a sustained basis by implementing the following key measures:

1. in terms of product research and development, we will
continue to promote the construction of Hosa Research and
Development Centre, maintain close cooperation with the
French Design Studio, while enhancing the research and
application of the technology of products’ function and
prototype through collaboration with the function and
prototype expert team from Japan; we will also strengthen our
cooperation with The Asian Fitness Academy to gradually
develop a distinctive product style and continuously improve
product competitiveness, while developing professional
influence through gaining recognition from international
authoritative institutions; on the other hand, the Group plans
to develop and launch wearable fitness products in 2014 to
develop the technology and product mix for future
development.
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in terms of product structure, our approach for fitness wear is
to continuously optimize professional fitness wear products
while expanding the product mix of fitness wear lifestyle
series and improving the commodity structure of yoga fitness
centres; our strategy for swimwear product line is to
continuously improve Hosa swimwear, while executing
product optimization and promotion for Water Cube brand in
order to expand the market share in mid-end market; the
focus of casual sports underwear is to enhance sporty nature
and professional image in order to ride on the professionalism
and to differentiate the Group’'s products.

with respect to channel and sales outlets, actively promote
innovation in respect of modes of sales or channels of sales
and emphasis on professional channels such as yoga fitness
centres and HOTTO water lifestyle brand collection stores. Of
which, HOTTO water lifestyle brand collection store is a brand-
new mode of sales, which will enhance the sales capability of
outlets and control on swimwear sales channels through
consolidation of swimwear brands.

with the rapid development of e-commerce and mobile
internet, the Company will fully promote the business of
e-commerce, mobile internet and 020. The mobile application
which was developed by the Company and featuring a mobile
fitness community for coaches and members will be launched
in the middle of this year. On this basis, the Group will develop
direct sales to coaches and members, promote Wechat
business centres and the expansion of e-commerce and
establish the two-way platform of 020 featuring on-line sales
with off-line experience and off-line sales with on-line
experience in the coming years.

in terms of brand promotion, with the aim of spreading fitness
culture, we will enhance the promotional activities on fitness
in professional fitness centres and community. Meanwhile,
through dedicating in fitness education and services, we aimed
at increasing customers’ loyalty and influence of the brand by
organizing some influential and large-scale fitness activities.
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We believe that the implementation of the above key measures will
safeguard the continuous and steady growth of the Company in
2014.

In the future, the Group will continue to adhere to the corporate
vision, mission and purpose, and will also continue to focus on its
core businesses, strengthen its competitive edges and safeguard its
continuous, steady and healthy development.

I would like to convey my gratitude to everyone who has contributed
to the excellent results of the Group in 2013. The contributions and
support of the senior management, staff, partners, customers and
shareholders of the Company are the cornerstone of the continuous
development and the amazing accomplishment of our Group.

Shi Hongliu
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 February 2014
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Indoor Sportswear Industry Overview

The PRC indoor sportswear market is still at its initial stage of
development but there will be tremendous room for growth,
and it is anticipated that the growth in demand will remain
strong. The construction of indoor stadiums, which was driven
by urbanization in the PRC, the increasing health awareness
of consumers, the growing popularity of indoor sports among
urbanites, the promotion of fitness across the country, the
increase in consumer demand for products that portray
professionalism, the gradual incorporation of swimming class
as compulsory subject by schools in different provinces and
cities and the gradual implementation of the supporting
policies developed by the PRC government in respect of
healthcare service industry will continue to provide
considerable development opportunities for the PRC indoor
sportswear industry. In addition, the apparel market has
demonstrated an obvious trend of market segmentation and
product professionalization, which will in turn provide
enormous opportunities to the PRC indoor sportswear
industries which include fitness wear, swimwear and sports
underwear. According to the forecast made by Frost & Sullivan
in the report of “Market Analysis on China’s Indoor Sportswear
Industry”, the compound annual growth rate of fitness wear
market is expected to remain at the high level of 34.5%, the
compound annual growth rate of swimwear market is
expected to remain at 18.9% and the compound annual growth
rate of sports underwear market is expected to remain at
19.3% in the coming 5 years. By 2018, based on ex-factory
sales, the market scale of fitness wear, swimwear and sports
underwear will amount to RMB15 billion, RMBé4.9 billion and
RMB1.65 billion, respectively.
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2.

Business Highlights

In 2013, our turnover recorded an impressive growth and
reached RMB1,021.5 million, representing an increase of
20.5% from our turnover in 2012. The net profit attributable to
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
amounted to RMB362.8 million, representing a significant
growth of 9.6%. The major drivers for the growth were the
consistent enhancement of brand position, the improvement
in the competitiveness of fitness wear products, the
optimization of product structure, the establishment of
professional sales channels, the launch of “Water Cube”
brand swimwear and the growth in market demand.

(a) Our products

Swimwear

Our swimwear products include swimsuits for
competition, sports swimsuits and casual swimwear for
women and men, children swimsuits as well as
beachwear. The Group has two brands, being "Hosa”
and “Water Cube” brands. The “Hosa” brand is targeted
at the mid-to-high end markets and its major customers
are urban white-collar professionals. As for the "Water
Cube” brand, it is targeted at the middle-end market
with teenagers as its major customers.

In 2013, the turnover of our swimwear products was
approximately RMB388.1 million, representing a 27.7%
growth over that of the previous year and 38.0% of our
turnover in 2013. The turnover for Hosa Brand swimwear
products was approximately RMB346.4 million,
representing a 14.0% growth, compared with the same
period in 2012. The turnover for the “Water Cube” brand
swimwear which was newly launched in 2013 was
approximately RMB41.7 million.

FERE

R2013F REBNEXRHSIEIE
R ZARBI021588 71  KAEH
2012F N E XK BN205% - R TR
RIRRD EEMAEAREI28BH
T KIBIBRI% - IBERANETZHBNR
SR UNFERT  BRSEoRS
NNRAMNERBENTE - FERREWN
2R IKIDIBEXENEDHHIEE
KMIG R -
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Fitness Wear

Our fitness wear includes mid-to-high end yoga apparel,
fitness apparel, track suits, dance apparel and fitness
jackets for women and men, mainly targeting urban
white-collar professionals between the age of 20 and 40.

In 2013, the turnover of our fitness wear products was
approximately RMB285.0 million, representing a 37.3%
growth over that of the previous year and 27.9% of our
turnoverin 2013.

Sports Underwear

Our sports underwear product line comprises mid-to-
high end professional sports underwear and casual
sports underwear for women and men, mainly targeting
urban white-collar professionals of all ages.

In 2013, the turnover of our sports underwear products
was approximately RMB309.6 million, representing a 2.6%
growth over that of the previous year and 30.3% of our
turnover in 2013.

Accessories

We offer accessories products which meet the
requirements and needs of our consumers for fitness
wear and swimwear, including goggles, swimming caps,
beach bags and beach sandals, as well as yoga mats,
yoga balls, dance shoes, gym bags, sport towels,
wristbands, headbands and water bottles for fitness
exercise.

In 2013, the turnover of our accessories products was
approximately RMB38.8 million, representing a 11.4%
growth over that of the previous year and 3.8% of our
turnover in 2013.

O BLE W e B B
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(b) Product mix

We own a comprehensive portfolio of high-quality indoor
sportswear products. In 2013, the three major product
lines of our Group ranked first in each of the relevant
market sectors. Our customer base concentrates around
urban white-collar professionals, our products enjoy a
distinguished leading position in terms of brand
recognition and market share, which is more significant
in the mid-to-high end markets. The following table sets
forth the turnover by products:

(b) EGmiHEE

NEBHERAEENEEZTANE
BARADAE G - 2013F - FEN=1KE
PEGHNESBOTHZPHOHES
B NMEBNERERBOE™D
BEBEYH Tk mBENES
FERHEBHRBROVRBLI - £P
SBHEDHEEETAESL - NEHT

REGENDNEFRSR

Year ended 31 December

HZ12R31BLLEE
2013 2012

RMB’000 % RMB'000 %

ARETF T Bat AR FIT Ehalud

Swimwear KB &) 388,108 38.0 304,009 35.8
Fitness wear 2 5 Wi 0 285,031 27.9 207,642 24.5
Sports underwear EFRK 309,586 30.3 301,602 35.6
Accessories fie £ 38,795 3.8 34,810 4.1
Total @5t 1,021,520 100.0 848,063 100.0

In 2013, fitness wear recorded higher growth rate
because we were highly competitive in the market.
Swimwear products also recorded relatively strong
growth, which was mainly due to its brand and product
strengths as well as the launch of “Water Cube” brand
swimwear. Of the three major product lines, the
competition within the casual sports underwear sector,
which represents a major portion of sports underwear,
was highly intense and as we are less competitive in the
market, the overall growth of sports underwear was
relatively insignificant. In terms of the development
trend, fitness wear and swimwear will remain as the key
growth drivers of the Group in the coming years.

2013 - W) 62 S AR &H 7 18 B 0
RIBRMBHRA KERERD
MRINS @ EGRESEKRIKILIS]
@RI ERNED  HERE S 8B
ENBR - =REBEZHRP &
MARPEERLENBHNIME R
WEB D R BT P BB
HPEBABR SHNEPRAKE
RBRRN -LERBBRE W)
110 fi2 £ Bk &6 0 2K 32 B0 ARk &F 113 /= 7R 2R
RFNETRBRE -
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Brand promotion and marketing

Focusing on enhancing the brand personality as being
natural, healthy and joyful, the Group continued to carry
out accurate and effective brand promotion and
marketing campaigns which focused on our target
customers. In June 2013, the "Hosa” brand was again
recognized as one of the China's 500 Most Valuable
Brands by the World Brand Lab, being the only indoor
sportswear brand which clinched the honour. Its brand
value increased from RMB2.118 billion in 2012 to
RMB2.836 billion. In 2013, the Group organized a variety
of exciting promotional activities, which included “Hosa
Swimwear Trends in China”, “"Hosa Stretch It Out — 5-day
Yoga Spiritual Trip to India”, "Hosa Cup China
International Yoga Pilates Fitness Conference”, “Stars in
Danger”, a large-scale TV show of Jiangsu Satellite TV, “the
Biggest Loser”, a large scale TV programme on CCTV —
2 and "Vibrant Asia — Fitness Carnival”, etc., receiving
overwhelming market responses and thus effectively
enhancing the brand influence and professional position
of Hosa. In 2013, the proportion of the Group's
investment in marketing was 3.3%.

Sales and distribution channels

We sell our products via flexible and diversified channels
such as department stores, professional retail outlets,
specialty stores, multi-functional outlets, seasonal
counters, wholesales and distribution, groupon and
e-commerce, among which the professional outlets
such as yoga centers, fitness centers, swimming pools
and resorts as well as sales channels such as yoga
fitness centres, swimwear brand collection stores, direct
selling system of coaches, mobile internet and
e-commerce will be the key growing channels of the
Group in the future, of which the proportions of sales
will increase gradually. As at 31 December 2013, the
Group had 1,356 retail outlets in China throughout the
year.

(c)

(d)
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(e) Product research and development

Professional, active and fashionable are the key features
of the Group’'s products. With nearly 20 years of
experience in research and development in the indoor
sportswear products, we have gained significant
expertise and technology and built an experienced
indoor sportswear product research and development
team with an understanding of the demand of indoor
sportswear products of the Chinese consumers. Our
Group has created a globalized and professional
research and development system formed by domestic
and foreign professional cooperating institutions
including Hosa International Beijing Design Centre, Hosa
International Fujian Technology Centre, French Design
Studio, function and prototype expert team from Japan
as well as The Asian Fitness Academy, which enabled
the Group to continuously enhance its competitive
strength in terms of the professional design, fashion
design, functional development and technology of indoor

sportswear and thus maintained the market
competitiveness of the Group’s products. In 2013, the
Group obtained 4 invention patents, 18 self-developed
utility model patents and was applying for one invention
patent, while the proportion of the Group’s investment in
research and development was 4.0%.

(e)
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Financial review

Turnover

By operating segments

Turnover of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2013 was RMB1,021.5 million (2012:
RMB848.1 million), representing an increase of 20.5% as
compared to the turnover for the financial year ended 31
December 2012. The following table sets forth the
sources of our revenue by operating segments in our
operations:

(f)

O BLE W e B B

&1 ¥5 [ B8

Y =
A %)
%,\oﬁ

L EX LN\ 37 VAN
&SN E D

REBEE20135F1283318 LW I
FENEXRRARE1021588
T (20125 © AR®E848.18 & 7T) -
WEE201N2FN2ENGLETBRFE
BIE K ZRIBN020.5% » NR B RS
BREFBESDBEDHWATR

Year ended 31 December

HZ12R31BLLEE
2013 2012
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AR FIT Batr ABREEFIT Ehajud
Domestic sales BAEE
Swimwear — Hosa KBS — 5 W 293,468 28.7 275,162 32.4
Swimwear — Water Cube KEBE)—IKILH 41,674 4.1 — —
Fitness wear — Hosa EEmMN — &0 282,709 27.7 203,056 24.0
Sports underwear — Hosa BEANK —EW 309,586 30.3 301,602 35.6
Accessories — Hosa fie £ — 350 38,681 3.8 32,201 3.8
Subtotal N5t 966,118 94.6 812,021 95.8
Overseas sales BINEE
Swimwear — Hosa KBS — G W 52,966 5.2 28,847 3.4
Fitness wear — Hosa RS mMN — &0 2,322 0.2 4,585 0.5
Accessories — Hosa fie 4 — 350 114 0.01 2,610 0.3
Subtotal /N5t 55,402 5.4 36,042 4.2
Total @3 1,021,520 100.0 848,063 100.0
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Domestic sales increased from RMB812.0 million for the
financial year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB966.1
million for the financial year ended 31 December 2013,
representing an increase of 19.0%. Overseas sales
increased from RMB36.0 million for the financial year
ended 31 December 2012 to RMB55.4 million for the
financial year ended 31 December 2013, representing an
increase of 53.7%. Given that the market potential is
large in China, the Group will continue to focus its sales
in the PRC market in the coming years.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales primarily consisted of production costs
and procurement costs of finished products from
external sources. Production costs include raw material
costs, labor costs as well as manufacturing overhead
incurred in the production of swimwear, fitness wear
and sports underwear. The following table sets forth a
breakdown of our cost of sales for our products:

BHABEDREE2012F1283168 1k
THRFEFENARKS208 8 T8
MEEE2013F 128318 (W RF
EHWARBWSIBRIT BIBB
19.0% < 8 INE B DB £ 2012F 128
SIBLEUWHRFENAREI0IEE
TIBNEEZE2013F 128318 1EH
HFENAREGLBEIT  1BBH
53.7% ° BN P HZNBEEERAN
MIZERER REBEKRKESF
HEEERDHAPEHZRE -

REBENEENRERORBEEMN
R OINEEIREE M BOIRIR - £ &
MABBEENKES RS HM R
BEANELENRW AR 5T
MARKEER - PRHINEE
7E Go B9 85 S AR BAAB ¢

Year ended 31 December

HE12B3MBIEFE
2013 2012

RMB’000 % RMB'000 %

ARBEFIT [=Palud ARBEF T [=palud

Raw materials [ 324,845 75.3 256,191 76.7

Labor S 49,263 11.4 36,805 11.0

Manufacturing overhead REER 14,576 3.4 10,930 33
Procurement costs of X G Bk & AR

finished products 42,525 9.9 29,948 9.0

431,209 100.0 333,874 100.0

Raw material costs primarily refer to the costs of
procuring raw materials used in the production of our
products, such as fabrics, threads and ancillary clothing
materials. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the
average purchase price for our key raw materials was
RMB67.3 per kilogram, which was slightly higher than
that for the year ended 31 December 2012. Such changes
in average purchase prices of our key raw materials
were primarily due to the fluctuation of commodity
prices, in particular crude oil and cotton prices.

R EZEREBEEERES
7 Go P A BO IR 1 (20 B Y ~ AR
KB E AL ) BYAYR » B E 2013
F1N2EIBLEFE REEBEBR
MKNFHRBERSATARE
67.37T - BN & ZE2012F 128318
LEFENERER - REBETZ2R
M EHERBEENERES /3£
EHRBRERE THZRIOMRIRE
18 ) 895 &0 P 34 -
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Certain production and processing steps of our products,
primarily fabric manufacturing, fabric printing and
dyeing, and fabric cutting, sewing and stitching, are
outsourced to external contract manufacturers. We
provide fabric materials to contract manufacturers for
processing and pay outsourced processing and service
fees. Such outsourced processing and service fees are
categorized under our raw material costs. Labor costs
consisted of salaries, benefits and other forms of
compensation paid to our production staff.
Manufacturing overhead mainly includes depreciation of
production facilities, costs associated with operating our
facilities including electricity, water and maintenance

O BLE W e B B

REBERNETEEN LSRR (£
PREMRE DHER DR
BRED N TN EE
B MEBRERHEDMTRHEMND E
ERETNHNL URTHNEEZEN
IRREE&E - ZSHNAEENLIR
R E N BERKEBNRM KSR
BN -BINREORERLEE
BEIXTNHE BHUKAEMEE
X REBEFBETZQREERN
I &~ 5L e 3 1 B R BO AR (0K
ENBENN) F -

costs, etc.
Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12BNBHLEFE
2013 2012
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AR F T Bt ABRBEFIT [Epalud
Swimwear KB F) 150,364 34.9 104,994 315
Fitness wear 251 M 96,057 22.3 67,232 20.1
Sports underwear EFRK 172,383 39.9 150,048 44.9
Accessories fie £ 12,405 2.9 11,600 3.5
431,209 100.0 333,874 100.0

The proportion of different products to total cost of sales
remained stable when comparing with 2012. This pattern
is consistent with the corresponding sales mix.

Gross profit

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 was RMB590.3 million (2012: RMB514.2
million), representing an increase of 14.8% as compared
to that of the year ended 31 December 2012. Gross profit
margin of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 was 57.8% (2012: 60.6%).

B2012F B ROERERIEE
MR ERSRE - IR EE

[RIEEHE— -

£
MEBEZE2013F128318LEFE
BERN B A REES90.38 & (2012
FrARBN2BEE ) B&ZE
2012 128318 LEFEBN148% -
B ZE2013F 128318 LFEHNEN
FR57.8% (20126 © 60.6%)
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of our gross NEHEI R REEDIE DY
profit from our operations and gross profit margin by REBKERSEMN R FEN=PFM :

geographical regions and operating segments:

Year ended 31 December

HZ12R31BLLEE
2013 2012
Gross Profit Gross Profit
Gross Profit Margin  Gross Profit Margin
EM E il = ! FER=
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARBETFIT Btk AR TIT EFajad
Domestic sales BERHE
Swimwear — Hosa KBS — 5 W 190,646 65.0 180,439 65.6
Swimwear — Water Cube KEBE)—IKILH 17,661 42.4 — —
Fitness wear — Hosa RS mM — 5% 187,833 66.4 137,772 67.8
Sports underwear — Hosa BEANK—EW 137,203 44.3 151,554 50.3
Accessories — Hosa fie 1 — 3534 26,348 68.1 22,326 69.3
Subtotal J\Et 559,691 57.9 492,091 60.6
Overseas sales BINHE
Swimwear — Hosa IKEBE)—EW 29,437 55.6 18,576 b4k
Fitness wear — Hosa BEEM — 5w 1,141 49.1 2,638 57.5
Accessories — Hosa i — &% 42 36.8 884 33.9
Subtotal J\ET 30,620 55.3 22,098 61.3
Total @st 590,311 57.8 514,189 60.6
Our overall gross profit margin for the financial year BEE2012F 1283 BLEFBRERE
ended 31 December 2013 decreased slightly to 57.8% as B - REBNERENENE&E
compared to that for the financial year ended 31 2003F 12831 B LM RFEMEKZE
December 2012, which was mainly due to the low gross 57.8% ° EZ2EHINTKIZH G ER
profit of the "Water Cube” brand and the decreasing K B AR 0 328 80 I B A X FE T K P

gross profit of casual sports underwear. NBEPTER
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Other revenue

Our other revenue primarily consisted of government
grants, interest income from interest-bearing bank
deposits and rental income. Government grants were
provided by provincial or prefectural government
authorities in the form of unconditional subsidies as
recognition for our contribution to the local economy
through our business operation and our achievements
as one of the core enterprises in local industry
clustering. Other revenue decreased from RMB27.6
million in 2012 to RMB25.5 million in 2013, representing
a slight decrease of 7.7%. Such decrease was mainly
due to the changes in the aggregate amount of
government grants, which amounted to RMB13.0 million
in 2013 (2012: RMB17.8 million).

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consisted primarily of
advertising and promotion expenses, incentive fees for
the sales personnel employed by the retail outlets,
remuneration and employee benefits for our sales and
marketing personnel, rental expenses, packaging and
transportation expenses, depreciation and amortization
expenses of our properties used for sales and marketing
activities and other miscellaneous expenses. Advertising
and promotion expenses primarily include fees paid for
event sponsorship and television, magazine and
billboard advertising. Selling and distribution expenses
increased from RMB91.5 million in 2012 to RMB104.5
million in 2013, representing an increase of 14.2%. The
amount increased mainly because of the increase in
subsidies given to the distributors for the purposes of
expanding distribution network during 2013. The
advertising and promotion expenses and the subsidies to
distributors amounted to RMB33.8 million (2012:
RMB34.6 million) and RMB41.8 million (2012: RMB30.3
million), respectively. Selling and distribution expenses
represented approximately 10.2% of total revenue in
2013 which was slightly lower than 10.8% recorded in
2012.

O BLE W e B B
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Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses consisted
primarily of remuneration and employee benefits for our
administrative staff, impairment losses for trade
receivables and prepayments, travel and transportation
expenses, general office expenses, stamp duty and other
miscellaneous expenses. Administrative and other
operating expenses increased from RMB70.4 million in
2012 to RMB75.2 million in 2013, representing an
increase of 6.8%. The research and development
expenses amounted to RMB40.5 million, and the
proportion to the Group’s turnover was 4.0%. The
administrative and other operating expenses to total
revenue decreased from 8.3% in 2012 to 7.4% in 2013.

Finance costs

Our finance costs primarily consisted of interest and
administrative fees charged to our interest-bearing bank
borrowings. Total finance costs decreased from RMBO0.6
million in 2012 to RMBO.4 million in 2013 (representing a
reduction of 29.8%) as it is the Group’s prudent financing
strategy to maintain the bank borrowings at a low level.
As at 31 December 2013, the bank borrowings of the
Group amounted to nil while the bills payable amounted
to RMB60.9 million.

Profit from operations and dividend

The profit from operations for the year ended 31
December 2013 increased by 11.9% to RMB370.4 million
as compared with RMB331.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2012. Interim dividend of HK4.8 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB3.8 cents] per share
for the first half of the year of 2013 was declared and
paid to the Shareholders. For the year ended 31
December 2013, the directors have proposed a final
dividend of HKé.6 cents [equivalent to approximately
RMB5.2 cents] per share, subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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Key financial ratios
The following table sets forth certain of our major
financial ratios as at 31 December of the year indicated:

O BLE W e B B

E2WR =R
NRHVWREBRAMNFENI12H
BB TERHHFLR:

2013 2012
Current ratio D2 n ez 8.19 times {3 5.57 times {3
Quick ratio pa ) m zS 7.36 times {3 5.10 times &
Inventory turnover days FERBOH 107.3 days B 110.6 days B
Debtors’ turnover days EU R B8 8 & 89.4 days H 99.7 days B
Creditors’ turnover days [ETRR R E & B £ 79.0 days B 86.2 days 3
Gearing ratio 8= N/A A& 6.9%

Working capital and working capital
management

The inventory turnover days of the Group were 107.3
days for the year ended 31 December 2013 as compared
to 110.6 days for the year ended 31 December 2012. The
inventory turnover days decreased slightly by 3.3 days.
The Group's debtors’ turnover days (including both trade
debtors and bills receivables) decreased to 89.4 days for
the year ended 31 December 2013 as compared to 99.7
days for the year ended 31 December 2012. The Group
generally allows average credit periods of 90 days to
customers. The Group's creditors’ turnover days [including
both trade payables and bills payables]) were 79.0 days
for the year ended 31 December 2013 as compared to
86.2 days for the year ended 31 December 2012. The
creditors’ turnover days in 2013 were similar to the
credit periods granted by the Group's suppliers of
approximately 90 days. The overall working capital cycle
has decreased from 124.1 days to 117.7 days mainly due
to the above reasons. Compared with 2012, the overall
operation has improved and was maintained at a normal
level.

o o

SEEENEEERER

REBHZE2013F12B318LEFE
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The Group’s primary objective of capital management is
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
the Shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher Shareholders’ returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital
structure

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had net current
assets of RMB1,314.4 million (2012: RMB987.2 million)
of which cash and bank deposits were RMB1,076.8
million (2012: RMB828.8 million). Total bank borrowings
as at 31 December 2013 were nil (2012: RMB86.9 million)
while the bills payables were RMB60.9 million (2012:
RMB46.4 million]. Bank borrowings and bills payables
were mainly used for the Group’'s working capital
management and/or financing the purchases of the
Group. The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December
2013 [total bank borrowings divided by total assets] was
nil (2012: 6.9%). The Group's transactions and the
monetary assets are principally denominated in
Renminbi. The Group has not experienced any material
difficulties on its operations or liquidity as a result of
fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the year.
The Group adopts centralized financing and treasury
policies in order to ensure the Group's funding is utilized
efficiently. Conservative approach is adopted in
monitoring foreign exchange exposure and interest rate
risk. The Group’s liquidity position remains strong and
the Group possesses sufficient cash and available
banking facilities to meet its commitments and working
capital requirements. This strong cash position enables
the Group to explore investment and business
development opportunities when expanding its market
share in China.
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Use of Proceeds — Initial Public Offering

The shares of the Company were listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on
16 December 2011 with net proceeds from the global
offering of approximately RMB488.6 million (after
deducting underwriting commissions and related
expenses). The amount utilized as of 31 December 2013

was as follows:

o B W B g3 B

PRIISRIBRZE — IR RS
RRSERMM201MFE128168ES
BHORZMBRAT IR
ERERBEMESRIAFPEANOR A
REE48BB THREBEME KX
TBREE R&) - R20135F128318E
MEEBUH:

As at 31 December 2013

Amount of 2013128318
Purposes of net proceeds Percentage net proceeds Amount utilized Remaining balance
RS MIBBP AR R Bat P S FRIE 3 &8 EEHEHE o]
(RMB million} (RMB million) (RMB million}
(AREBET) (AREBEIT) (AREBEIT)
1. Expansion of distribution network 35% 171.0 78.2 92.8
BRDIBREE
2. Enhancement of brand image through 25% 122.1 73.4 48.7
marketing and promotion
EETRERNEB RGBT R
3. Expansion of production capacity 15% 73.3 23.4 49.9
B ERE
4. Investment in research, design and 10% 48.9 48.9 —
development activities
HF R MARTHNKRE
5. Developing and upgrading of supply chain 5% 24.4 — 24.4
and information management systems
SRRTTRMERNEREERR
6. Funding for working capital and 10% 48.9 48.9 —
other general corporate purposes
REBEENEM—RAIBE
RtER
100% 488.6 272.8 215.8

The Company does not intend to apply the remaining net
proceeds for the purposes other than those disclosed in
the prospectus of the Company dated 6 December 2011

(the "Prospectus”).

RN SRR IRAAS O HR2011E
1286 BMBRETR (BRER]) F
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Use of Proceeds — Share Placements

On 17 September 2013, Ho Born Investment Holdings
Limited ("Ho Born”], the Company and Goldman Sachs
[Asia) L.L.C., as the placing agent entered into a placing
and subscription agreement pursuant to which the
placing agent agreed to procure purchasers for
54,500,000 existing Shares owned by Ho Born to not
fewer than six independent placees at the placing price
of HK$2.85 per Share, and Ho Born conditionally agreed
to subscribed, and the Company agreed to allot and
issue to Ho Born for such number of subscription shares
which is equivalent to the number of shares actually
placed under the placing at the subscription price of
HK$2.85 per Share. Details of these transactions are set
out in the Company’'s announcement dated 17
September 2013.

Approximately RMB116.9 million [(after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses) was
raised from the subscription. The amount utilized as of
31 December 2013 was as follows:

ﬁﬁf%%ﬂ;éﬁﬁ?@—ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ
M2013F 98178 EMWIREERSB
Ra)(EFH) T NCIPS SR (]
M BEREELT FRESNIR) ST
U—MBEENRREHRE BRI B
%ﬁi@@%ﬁﬁ@m@%}\? SRERMN
285BI I EBRBBEHES
*2 54,500,000 IRE R M REEFAN
DPRANSEIUABRA MEAEB
RERRABBR A LIABERDIE
MEBNBETESNERLRESR
RIN285BIT 2 RBEBERE 2R M
BEZZHBERBRMN - 2FXH
ZFBEIR RN DB/ 201359
B1718z -

BREEGSOARBIIBRTT
(%%?DB%@@%fJﬁ@&l’ﬁﬁ%%F’aﬁi &) -
BE2013FNAIBRHA TR
wr:

As at 31 December 2013

Amount of R2013F12H318
Purposes of net proceeds Percentage net proceeds Amount utilized Remaining balance
RS MIRB MR Bt P 1S 7R IR 1P &8 EERHEE ih &8
(RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB m’M\on]
ARBBET (AREBBST (ARBBETT
1. Enhancement of brand image through 30% 35.0 — 35.0
marketing and promotion
EEMBERNSERTREIR
2. Expansion of production capacity 15% 17.5 — 17.5
‘R ER
3. Investment in research, design and 40% 46.9 26.7 20.2
development activities
P R RFAZTHNRE
4. Funding for working capital and 15% 17.5 17.5 —
other general corporate purposes
REEETNEM-—RATIHR
?ET/\é@
100% 116.9 44.2 72.7
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The Company does not intend to apply the remaining net
proceeds for the purposes other than those disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 17 September
2013.

Apart from the capital raising activity mentioned above,
the Company has not conducted any equity fund raising
activities in the past 12 months from the date of this
announcement.

Capital expenditure and capital commitments
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the capital
expenditure spending amounted to RMB18.8 million. As
at 31 December 2013, the capital commitments
amounted to RMB30.1 million.

Foreign exchange risk management

Most of the sales and purchases of the Group are settled
in Renminbi, which is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. The fluctuation of Renminbi during the year
did not have any adverse effect on the Group's results. In
addition, the Group will conduct periodic review of its
exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a workforce of
about 1,351 people. Salaries of employees are
maintained at competitive level and are reviewed
annually, with close reference to the relevant labour
market and economic situation. The Group has adopted
share option schemes whereby employees of the Group
are granted options to acquire shares in the Company.
Good relationship has been maintained between the
Group and its employees. The Group also provides
internal training to staff and pays out bonuses based on
staff performance and profits of the Group.
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Looking Ahead

Looking forward, there will still be tremendous room for
growth in the PRC indoor sportswear market, and the growth
of demand will remain strong. The construction of indoor
stadiums, which was driven by urbanization in the PRC, the
increasing health awareness of consumers, the growing
popularity of indoor sports among urbanites, the promotion of
fitness across the country, the increase in consumer demand
for products that portray professionalism, the gradual
incorporation of swimming class as compulsory subject by
schools in different provinces and cities and the gradual
implementation of the support policies developed by the PRC
government in respect of the healthcare service industry will
continue to provide considerable development opportunities
for the Group. In addition, the apparel market has
demonstrated an obvious trend of market segmentation and
product professionalization, which will in turn provide
enormous opportunities to the Group which specializes in
professional and functional apparels such as fitness wear,
swimwear and sports underwear.

In 2014, the Group will continue to focus on the indoor sports
products market and enhance its competitive strengths by
seizing development opportunities and market opportunities.
It will strive to promote its steady and rapid growth on a
sustained basis by implementing the following key measures:

1. in terms of product research and development, we will
continue to promote the construction of Hosa Research
and Development Centre, maintain close cooperation
with the French Design Studio, while enhancing the
research and application of the technology of products’
function and prototype through collaboration with the
function and prototype expert team from Japan; we will
also strengthen our cooperation with The Asian Fitness
Academy to gradually develop a distinctive product style
and continuously improve product competitiveness,
while developing professional influence through gaining
recognition from international authoritative institutions;
on the other hand, the Group plans to develop and
launch wearable fitness products in 2014 to develop the
technology and product mix for future development.
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in terms of product structure, our approach for fitness
wear is to continuously optimize professional fitness
wear products while expanding the product mix of
fitness wear lifestyle series and improving the
commodity structure of yoga fitness centres; our
strategy for swimwear product line is to continuously
improve Hosa swimwear, while executing product
optimization and promotion for Water Cube brand in
order to expand the market share in mid-end market;
the focus of casual sports underwear is to enhance
sporty nature and professional image in order to ride on
the professionalism and to differentiate the Group's
products.

with respect to channel and sales outlets, actively
promote innovation in respect of modes of sales or
channels of sales and emphasis on professional
channels such as yoga fitness centres and HOTTO water
lifestyle brand collection stores. Of which, HOTTO water
lifestyle brand collection store is a brand-new mode of
sales, which will enhance the sales capability of outlets
and control on swimwear sales channels through
consolidation of swimwear brands.

with the rapid development of e-commerce and mobile
internet, the Company will fully promote the business of
e-commerce, mobile internet and 020. The mobile
application which was developed by the Company and
featuring a mobile fitness community for coaches and
members will be launched in the middle of this year. On
this basis, the Group will develop direct sales to coaches
and members, promote Wechat business centres and
the expansion of e-commerce and establish the two-way
platform of 020 featuring on-line sales with off-line
experience and off-line sales with on-line experience in
the coming years.

in terms of brand promotion, with the aim of spreading
fitness culture, we will enhance the promotional
activities on fitness in professional fitness centres and
community. Meanwhile, through dedicating in fitness
education and services, we aimed at increasing
customers’ loyalty and influence of the brand by
organizing some influential and large-scale fitness
activities.
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We believe that the implementation of the above key measures BEMN L E28EESE
will safeguard the continuous and steady growth of the SIEN0ULFRFEREBE
Company in 2014.
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Directors

The Board is responsible and has general powers for the
management and conduct of the business of the Group. The Board
currently consists of seven directors [the “Directors”, each a
“Director”), including four executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The following table sets forth information

g5

EERUAEEEH v EERRFABET
TERE-REERE TESENBLSE
S(ES) AN OFNSHTESR=2B
UERTES FERNNEHESENENE
o

regarding members of the Board.

Name Appointment Date Age Position Roles and Responsibilities
e ZIBH FR B AERES
Mr. Shi Hongliu 2 September 2010 48 chairman and corporate strategic planning
executive Director and overall business
development of the Group
o 3 0m 5 A= 20109828 ESRRNTES REBE X RIER BT
BEEFER
Mr. Shi Hongyan 2 September 2010 45 vice chairman, developing and implementing
chief executive officer operation plans,
and executive Director and monitoring the
overall manufacturing
activities of the Group
1o 16 JE 5 &= 201059828 glES& THRIK ERMNEBENEEN
NTES SEtEINEEER
TETH
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong 2 September 2010 47 executive Director corporate investment and
financing activities of
the Group
SLmEE 201059828 HITES REBN RS KMEISE
Mr. Zhao Yan 2 September 2010 45 executive Director implementing and overseeing
development plans,
administration,
human resources,
management and
information systems of
the Group
e d 20109828 HITES BTN EBREEN

RSt &)~ 17 EEAE -
ANER - BER
EREM
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Position

B fi

EFARBREHE

Roles and Responsibilities

BERBS

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

SEN - kogun

Mr. Sun Ruizhe

HIm T S A

Mr. Yao Ge

Wl e

23 November 2011

20111183238

7 June 2011

20MF 6878

7 June 2011

201MF6R78

52

50

51

independent
non-executive Director

BYFNTES

independent
non-executive Director

BYUFATES

independent
non-executive Director

BYUFATES

attending meetings of the
Board to perform duties,
but not participating in
the day-to-day management
of the business operations
of the Group
BRESESIHINET
Bs BAB2HKES
EBEENDESIE

attending meetings of the
Board to perform duties,
but not participating in
the day-to-day management
of the business operations
of the Group
HRE@@HENET
B BASZ2HRES
EBEENDESE

attending meetings of the
Board to perform duties,
but not participating in
the day-to-day management
of the business operations
of the Group
ERESFSIHANET
Bs BAS2HKEH
(FEENDRER
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Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Hongliu

Aged 48, is the founder of the Hosa brand. He was appointed as the
chairman and executive Director of the Company on 2 September
2010. Mr. Shi has over 27 years of experience in the apparel industry
and is primarily responsible for the corporate strategic planning and
overall business development of the Group. From 1983 to 1996, he
was a sole proprietor in the apparel industry where he primarily
engaged in distributing sportswear for women in Beijing, Shanghai
and Guangzhou. From 1996 to 2011, he assumed various positions
at Fujian Province Jinjiang City Haosha Garments Co., Ltd. ("Haosha
Garments”). From September 1996 to March 2000, he was the chief
brand manager of Haosha Garments responsible for formulating,
implementing brand strategy and improving the competitiveness of
Hosa brand. From March 2000 to March 2006, he was the general
manager of Haosha Garments responsible for developing and
implementing business development strategies and overseeing the
overall administrative and business activities of this company. From
March 2006 to February 2011, he was the supervisor of Haosha
Garments. Since November 1997, he has been a director of Haosha
International (H.K.] Limited ("Haosha H.K.”) and is responsible for
overlooking the operation, development strategy as well as
corporate investment activities of Haosha H.K. Since October 2005,
being one of the founders of Haosha Industry (Fujian] Co., Ltd.
("Haosha Industry”]), he has been the chairman of the board
responsible for overseeing the operation and investment activities of
Haosha Industry and general manager since January 2011. Mr. Shi
Hongliu is a brother of Mr. Shi Hongyan. Apart from being a
Director, Mr. Shi had not been a director of any listed company in
the past three years.

Mr. Shi was selected as one of the “Top Ten Meritorious
Entrepreneurs” [+ KINE{EFEZR) at China's International Fashion
Week by China National Textile and Apparel Council (PEI#H % T &
%&) in 2007, and “Brand China Person of the Year (Apparel
Industry)” (GohEPEDARZEITHRIFZ AMD by Brand China Industry
Alliance (GhDPEIZEZEHESE) in 2010. He is also the honorary
chairman of the Chamber of Commerce of Jinjiang in Shanghai
(L8 I BesEEeR.

Mr. Shi completed a diploma program for general managers of
enterprises (#2#&I25RM2) of China Europe International Business
School (PEREIFR L EE2kt) in December 2008.
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Mr. Shi Hongyan

Aged 45, was appointed as the vice chairman, chief executive officer
and executive Director of the Company on 2 September 2010. Mr.
Shi Hongyan has over 20 years of experience in the apparel industry
and is primarily responsible for developing and implementing
operation plans, and monitoring the overall manufacturing activities
of the Group. From 1988 to 1996, he was a sole proprietor in the
apparel industry where he primarily engaged in distributing
sportswear for women in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou. From
1996 to 2011, he assumed various positions at Haosha Garments.
From September 1996 to March 2000, he was the director of Haosha
Garments responsible for establishing management systems and
overseeing the administrative and business operations. From March
2000 to March 2006, he was the chief production manager
responsible for formulating and implementing the production plans
and supervising the production process. From March 2006 to
February 2011, he was the director and general manager of Haosha
Garments. Since October 2005, he has been the vice chairman of the
board of Haosha Industry. And from October 2005 to January 2011,
he was the general manager of Haosha Industry where he was
responsible for implementing production plans and overseeing the
production operation. Since January 2011, he has been the vice
general manager of Haosha Industry. Mr. Shi Hongyan is a brother
of Mr. Shi Hongliu. Apart from being a Director, Mr. Shi had not
been a director of any listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Shi Hongyan currently assumes leadership roles in various
institutions, the details of which are set out in tabular format below.

Terms of Office Position
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August 2004-now
2006 F8RES
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vice chairman of the first council
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September 2005-now
2005F9BES

February 2006-now
2006F 2B &S

vice chairman of the eighth council
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July 2008-now vice chairman of the second council

2008F7HBES F_EESsZIER

August 2008-now vice chairman of the second council

2008 8B ES F_BEBSIER
2009-now member
2009F 22 %8

member of the first standing committee

Quanzhou City Trademark Association

RIND AR S

Jinjiang City Textile and Apparel Association
SImOERERS

Jinjiang City Association of Industry and Commerce

s IhmIEE

Quanzhou City Association of Quality and
Technical Supervision

RNTHRERMEERS

Fujian Province Apparel Industry Association

BREMERBTERS

The Eleventh Jinjiang City Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
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Mr. Shi Hongyan was selected as one of the First Outstanding Young
Enterprising Talents in Quanzhou (BEBRIMNBFEFRIZFEAT] in

April 2005 and Outstanding Young Entrepreneurs of Fujian Province
(IBREBEFHRBFFEFENR] in November 2006.

Mr. Shi Hongyan completed a diploma program for chief executive
officers of enterprises ({(ERBEBHKITEI) of the Economics
College of Peking University (VR K E24EEEE20r) in 2003.

Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong

Aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director on 2 September
2010. Mr. Zeng has over 14 years of experience in investment and
finance and is primarily responsible for corporate investment and
financing activities of the Group. From April 1985 to December 1987,
he worked for the human resource department of Jinjiang City
Branch of Agricultural Bank of China Co., Ltd. in Quanzhou of Fujian
Province (PEIRFKIRTRNHBEBRLTBREERINHELHT]
where he was responsible for human resources management and
counseling. From January 1988 to May 1997, he worked at the
human resource department and was then appointed as the deputy
chief of personal savings department of Shishi City Branch Bank
(G#IH321T) where he was responsible for implementing internal
regulations and procedures related to human resources
management, including organization, employees’ training, welfare
and incentive scheme. During May 1997 to July 2004, he was the
branch supervisor of the Hanjiang Branch (8T 93242) and Baogai
Branch (BZ&7I2ER) of the same bank where he was responsible
for the overall operation of the two branches. From July 2004 to
October 2007, Mr. Zeng worked as the manager of the investment
and finance department of Haosha Garments, where he managed
the investment portfolio and expanded the financing channels of this
company. Since October 2007, he has been the manager of the
investment and finance department of Haosha Industry, where he
was responsible for implementing and monitoring strategic
corporate investment and financing activities. Apart from being a
Director, Mr. Zeng had not been a director of any listed company in
the past three years.

Mr. Zeng received his college diploma in finance from Central Radio
and TV University (PR[EFEER KE) in May 2004. He was qualified
as an assistant economist (BNI2ACEM) by the Evaluation Committee
of Professional and Technical post of Quanzhou City Branch of
Agricultural Bank of China (PEIRFKIRITRINME DT HFHRIAMBFS
EFZS38) in December 1990.
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Mr. Zhao Yan

Aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director on 2 September
2010. He has over 20 years of experience in corporate management
and is primarily responsible for implementing and overseeing
development plans, administration, human resources, management
and information systems of the Group. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Zhao held various positions, including product designer, IT
manager, project manager, research institute director and etc, at
Haier Group Corporation (BFREE/S)) and its subsidiaries for
approximately 12 years. From August 1998 to February 2002, he was
the general manager of Haier 3C Chain Co., Ltd. (Ef33CE@EBRA
Sl). From March 2002 to March 2003, he was the special assistant
to the general manager at Shanghai Microtek Technology Co., Ltd. (=
g hBEMHEBRAS)). From March to December 2003, he was the
president of Shanghai Hongtusanbao Technology Co., Ltd. ( £}87RE
=M BERLE)). From December 2003 to August 2005, he was
appointed as a deputy general manager of Shanghai Youtong Mobile
Technology Co., Ltd. (/8B @BENR X BRAT)). From September
2005 to July 2007, Mr. Zhao was the special assistant to the
chairman of the board of directors of Haosha H.K. and has been the
vice chief executive officer since July 2007. Since October 2007, he
has been the vice chief executive officer of Haosha Industry. Apart
from being a Director, Mr. Zhao had not been a director of any listed
company in the past three years.

Mr. Zhao has also received various awards from different accredited
institutions, including the “National Technological Achievement
Certificate” [BIRMIXAMRTANEFES) in September 1995, the first
prize of “Shandong Province Excellent Achievement Prize for
Computer Applications” ((UFRE 5T EMEREFRMREE] in February
1996, the second prize of “China Light Industry Technological
Progress Prize” (PEIES T EM 2532 52— 2528)) in December
1996, the first prize of “Qingdao Technological Progress Prize” (§ 5
R B3l 3 45 22 (—5548)) in March 1997 and the prize of “Second
Qingdao Youth Science and Technology Prize” (B _ @B SHaFR
F£:88) in February 2000. He was selected as the “Advanced Worker in
Marketing Planning” (MIR{TIHRENNHE T IFE) of Qingdao Three
Major Projects of Industrial System Marketing (5 &M LERRTHH
788" =K L#2") in March 2000.

Mr. Zhao received his bachelor’'s degree in electronic engineering
from Shanghai Jiaotong University (383838 K58) in July 1990. He
also completed the 4-month mid-level business management
courses from the School of Economics and Trade of Qingdao
University of Science Technology (582K, (formerly known
as Qingdao Chemical Engineering College (&t T&BR)) in
January 2000. Mr. Zhao was qualified as a senior engineer in
November 2000 by Qingdao Personnel Bureau (E&mMAER).
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

Aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 23 November 2011. She has over 25 years of experience in
financial management and corporate finance and had worked in an
international accounting firm and other companies listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange. She is currently the chief
financial officer and company secretary of China Lilang Limited
(PEIMRBAEBRATE)) (stock code: 1234). Ms. Ko is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Apart from being a
Director, Mr. Ko had not been a director of any listed company in the
past three years. Ms. Ko graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a professional diploma in management accountancy
in November 1984.

Mr. Sun Ruizhe

Aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 7 June 2011. He was the vice president of China Textile
Information Center (PEIFHAE 2PN from June 1999 to April 2002
and has been acting as the president since May 2002. Mr. Sun has
also been acting as the president of China Textiles Development
Center (#h#tZGRIZEDIN) since June 1999. In addition, Mr. Sun is
the vice chairman of China National Textile and Apparel Council (P
BHinik L% S8) and acted as the vice president of the information
department of China National Textile and Apparel Council (CPED#H %
THBBE RSB from January 2001 to April 2002. From December
1998 to May 1999, Mr. Sun was the director of China Textile
Information Institute (PEIFHAELR %S 2T FF), the vice president
of China Textile Information Network Center (PE#H RS ESEDP /N
and the president of China Textiles Development Center (PED#H 78k
BB EGRRIZE DN, Apart from being a Director, Mr. Sun had
not been a director of any listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Sun has also been a member of the National Technical
Commission of Color Standardization (EEEZREIRENVRINEES
since September 2004. He was selected as the "Advanced Worker in
National Textile Industrial System” (RBIih&# L3RG ETIES)
by National Textile Industry Administration ([BIZR&h#% T 2423 in
May 2000 and was granted the special government allowance by the
state council in October 2004.

Mr. Sun received his bachelor’'s degree in dyeing and finishing
engineering from Donghua University (SR#EK22), formerly known as
East China Institute of Textile Engineering (ZEER#R8 T E2B5%), in July
1985. He has been a qualified senior engineer since November 2001,
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Mr. Yao Ge

Aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 7 June 2011. After his graduation in September 1994 to late 1994,
Mr. Yao was independently exploring the development of Japanese
traditional garments and its overall apparel market in Japan. In
December 1994, he returned to China and independently explored
the Chinese apparel market and industrial textile structure. In
October 1996, he started working at the marketing centre of China
Fashion Association (PEIARZESRETENHEB), and was later promoted
to the deputy secretary general in December 1999 and the
supervisor of the marketing centre in February 2001. He was
appointed as the deputy director of China’'s Professional Fashion
Models Committee (PEIRZENFEIRIFEZSS) in July 2002. Since
May 2003, he has been the chairman of the board of directors of
Beijing Oriental Bentley Culture Development Co., Ltd. (AAZRERHE
M (&), Apart from being a Director, Mr. Yao had not been
a director of any listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Yao received silver award for Tokyo 21st Clothing Fashion
Paintings and Crafts Exhibition ((RR&E21@ARENRIT=MF L 2R
in 1993 and recognition award for Japanese Apparel Fashion Design
Contest (BRAREDTTERETI E) in 1994,

Mr. Yao received his college diploma in journalism from Shenyang
Radio and Television University [(E[7EEERAKE) in November
1988 and went to Japan for advanced study in 1990. He completed a
two-year Japanese language course at Asahi International School
(FABEIRREMR) in September 1992 and a two years' advanced study
in garment design at Tokyo Shimizu Institute [FRZUSKEPR] in
September 1994 and received a certificate in garment design.
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Senior Management

Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson

Aged 40, was appointed as the chief financial officer and company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) on 14 February
2011. Mr. Lai is primarily responsible for the overall external
financial reporting of the Group. From December 2003 to March
2011, Mr. Lai worked as senior management in accounting
departments in several listed and private companies. From
September 1996 to October 2003, Mr. Lai worked as an assistant
manager in KPMG, where he was mainly responsible for the
external auditing, initial public offering and due diligence projects of
financial institution sector. Since November 2013, Mr. Lai has been
appointed as the independent non-executive director of Pearl River
Tyre (Holdings) Limited [stock code: 1187). Apart from this, Mr. Lai
had not been a director of any listed company in the past three year.

Mr. Lai received a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 1996. Mr. Lai also received a
master’'s degree in business administration from the University of
Birmingham in 2008. He is a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a member of the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Company Secretary

Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson is the chief financial officer and company
secretary of the Company. Please refer to the paragraph headed
“Senior Management” above for Mr. Lai’s biography.
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures with a view to being a
transparent and responsible organization which is open and
accountable to the Shareholders. The Board strives to adhere to the
principles of corporate governance set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”)
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and has adopted sound
corporate governance practices to meet the legal and commercial
standards, focusing on areas such as internal control, fair
disclosure and accountability to the Shareholders to ensure the
transparency and accountability of all operations of the Company.
The Company believes that effective corporate governance is an
essential factor to create more value for the Shareholders. The
Board will continue to review and improve the corporate governance
practices of the Group from time to time to ensure that the Group is
led by an effective Board in order to optimize return for the
Shareholders.

During the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013, the
Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Board

The Board consists of seven Directors, comprising four executive
Directors, and three independent non-executive Directors. The
executive Directors are Mr. Shi Hongliu, Mr. Shi Hongyan, Mr. Zeng
Shaoxiong and Mr. Zhao Yan. The independent non-executive
Directors are Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, Mr. Sun Ruizhe and Mr. Yao Ge.
Among members of the Board, Mr. Shi Hongliu is the elder brother
of Mr. Shi Hongyan. Save as disclosed herein, to the best knowledge
of the Company, there is no other financial, business or family
relationship among the members of the Board. The functions and
duties conferred on the Board include convening Shareholders’
meetings and reporting on the work of the Board to the
Shareholders at Shareholders’ meetings as may be required by
applicable laws, implementing resolutions passed at Shareholders’
meetings, determining the Company’'s business plans and
investment plans, formulating the Company’s annual budget and
final accounts, formulating the Company’'s proposals for dividend
and bonus distributions as well as exercising other powers,
functions and duties as conferred on it by the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles’]) and applicable laws. The senior
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management is delegated with the authority and responsibilities by
the Board for the day-to-day management and operations of the
Group. The Board meets regularly to review the financial and
operating performance of the Company, and considers and approves
the overall strategies and policies of the Company. The composition
of the Board is well-balanced with the Directors having sound
industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic planning
experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the Group.
The executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
bring a variety of experience and expertise to the Company.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of its independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such
confirmation, the Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent and that they have met the
specific independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

All Directors have separate and independent access to the
Company’'s senior management to fulfill their duties and, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. All Directors
also have access to the company secretary who is responsible for
ensuring that the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. An agenda and accompanying Board/
Board committee papers are distributed to the Directors/Board
committee members with reasonable notice in advance of the
meetings. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
committees, which records in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board and decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed, are
kept by the company secretary and are open for inspection by
Directors.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken
against Directors arising out of corporate activities.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company, and considers and approves the
overall strategies and policies of the Company.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are two
distinct and separate positions, which are held by Mr. Shi Hongliu
and Mr. Shi Hongyan, respectively, both being executive Directors.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson. Details of the
biography of the Company Secretary are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
The Company Secretary confirmed that he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in the year ended 31
December 2013 as required by the Listing Rules.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company and is appointed for an
initial term of three years commencing from 16 December 2011.

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not
less than one third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years.

Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to the new code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code relating to board diversity which has come into effect since 1
September 2013, the Board approved a new board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”] in August 2013. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members. While all
Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis, the
Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of
the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience (professional
or otherwise), skills and knowledge.
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Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices, the
Board has established the following Board committees to oversee
the particular aspects of the Group's affairs. Each of these
committees is consisted wholly of or of a majority of independent
non-executive Directors.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”] has
been established, in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the
Listing Rules, with written terms of reference in compliance with
Code Provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control system of the Group and to provide
advice and comments to the Board. The members meet regularly
with the external auditors and the Company’s senior management
for the review, supervision and discussion of the Company's
financial reporting and internal control procedures and ensure that
management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal
control system. The Audit Committee comprises three members,
namely Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, Mr. Sun Ruizhe and Mr. Yao Ge, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
matters, was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Pursuant to the meetings of the Audit Committee on 28 February
2013 and 8 August 2013, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012 and the six months ended 30 June 2013
respectively, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, and the selection and appointment of the external auditors.
There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee during the financial year ended 31 December 2013.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the "Remuneration
Committee”) has been established, in compliance with Rules 3.25
and 3.26 of the Listing Rules, with written terms of reference in
compliance with Code Provision of B.1.2 of the CG Code. The
principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
determine the policies in relation to human resources management,
to review the compensation strategies, to determine the
remuneration packages of senior executives and managers, to
approve the terms of the service contract of the executive Directors,
to assess the performance of the executive Directors, to recommend
and establish annual and long-term performance criteria and
targets as well as to review and supervise the implementation of all
executive compensation packages and employee benefit plans.
Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Board expects the Remuneration
Committee to exercise independent judgment and ensures that
executive Directors do not participate in the determination of their
own remuneration.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Remuneration Committee on 28
February 2013, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure relating to the Directors and
senior management of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established, in compliance
with Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code, with written terms of
reference in compliance with Code Provision of A.5.2 of the CG
Code. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendation to the Board on selection of candidates for
directorships, appointment, reappointment of Directors and Board
succession and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee will also give consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board, and the Board will review the Board
Diversity Policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
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Pursuant to the meeting of the Nomination Committee on 28
February 2013, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board and assessed
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

Corporate Governance Function

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board in compliance with Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code,
which include (a) to develop and review the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management
of the Group; (c] to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d)
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Group and the
Directors; and (e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report.

Number of Meetings and Directors’
Attendance

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of
the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and general meetings of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:
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Board Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEE8E THZLES HMZTEE R&ZLTES8 BRERAS
Executive Directors HNITESE
Mr. Shi Hongliu it 37 S B
(Chairman of the Board) (28 F /%) 7/7  N/AAEA N/A/ARGEA  N/A/ARER 2/2
Mr. Shi Hongyan Jita 6 JfE 5 == 6/7  N/NNEA N/AANGER N/AANGER 1/2
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong SO E 717  N/NNER N/A/ NGB Al 1/2
Mr. Zhao Yan =R 7/7  N/AANER 1/1 N/A/ANEA 2/2
Independent BUFNTES
non-executive Directors
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan SBEMET L 417 2/2 N/A/AEBR N/A/ARER 1/2
Mr. Sun Ruizhe IR T e HE 417 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/2
Mr. Yao Ge Wk e 417 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/2

None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate
Director.
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Continuous Professional Development

The Directors have been informed of the requirement under Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code regarding continuous professional
development. According to the records maintained by the Company,
the current Directors received the following training with an
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed
company in compliance with the new requirement of the Corporate
Governance Code on continuous professional development during
the year ended 31 December 2013:

Corporate Governance/
Updates on Laws, Rules and
Regulations
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Accounting/Financial/
Management or Other
Professional Skills

PEER AR RAUR st/ WK ER
ERRE Hith B ae
Attend Attend
Read Seminars/ Read Seminars/
Name of Director materials Briefings materials Briefings
HE
HEHE st g,
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Executive Directors WITESE
Mr. Shi Hongliu it 3 o
[Chairman of the Board) (BEFDFE) 4 v v v
Mr. Shi Hongyan Jita 6 JfE 5 = v v v X
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong SR E v v v X
Mr. Zhao Yan =R v v v v
Independent BUFMTESE
non-executive Directors
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan BEME L v v v v
Mr. Sun Ruizhe IR E e v v v v
Mr. Yao Ge WX E v v v v
Compliance with the Model Code for BIEBETERXRNIRETR

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers ("Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
for securities transactions by the Directors. Specific enquiries have
been made with all Directors and all Directors declared that they
have complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2013.
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of
the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2013 which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group at that date and of the Group's results
and cash flows for the year then ended and are properly prepared
on the going concern basis in accordance with the applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company has appointed KPMG as the auditors of the Company.
The fees for the audit and review services provided by the auditors
to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to
RMB2.3 million.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company concerning
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company is set out in the “Independent Auditors’
Report” on pages 77 to 78 of this annual report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control systems in order to safeguard the Group’s assets
and Shareholders’ interests, and review and monitor the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems on a regular basis so as to ensure that
internal control and risk management systems in place are
adequate. The Company has established written policies and
procedures applicable to all operating units to ensure the
effectiveness of internal controls. The Company also has a process
for identifying, evaluating, and managing the significant risks to the
achievement of its operational objective. This process is subject to
continuous improvement and was in place throughout 2013 and up
to the date of this report. The day-to-day operation is entrusted to
the individual department, which is accountable for its own conduct
and performance, and is required to strictly adhere to the policies
set by the Board. The Company carries out reviews on the
effectiveness of the internal control systems from time to time in
order to ensure that they are able to meet and deal with the dynamic
and ever changing business environment.
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During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review and
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
systems including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management. External consultants were engaged to assist
the Board to perform high-level review of the internal control
systems for its business operations and processes. Such review
covered the financial, compliance and operational controls as well
as risk management mechanisms and assessment was made by
discussions with the management of the Company and its external
auditors. The Board believes that the existing internal control
system is adequate and effective.

Shareholders’ Rights

How Shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting and putting forward proposals
at Shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholder holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company by mail at
Room 4105-08, 41/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s] himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the
Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the secretary of the Company by mail at
Room 4105-08, 41/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong or by email at hosa@pordahavas.com. The
Company Secretary forwards communications relating to matters
within the Board's direct responsibilities to the Board and
communications relating to ordinary business matters, such as
suggestions, inquiries and customer complaints, to the chief
executive officer of the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company made
certain amendments to its articles of associations pursuant to a
special resolution passed on 4 September 2013. A summary of the
changes are set forth below:

(] substituted the approval requirement from that of an ordinary
resolution of the Company with a board resolution in relation
to the declaration and payment of dividends out of the profits
of the Company or from any reserve set aside from profits;
and

(i) provided an option for the chairman of the Company to
nominate an executive director of the Company as chairman of
a general meeting.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining a clear, timely
and effective communication with the Shareholders and investors of
the Company. The Board also recognizes that effective
communication with its investors is critical in establishing investor
confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore, the Group is
committed to maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure
the investors of the Company and the Shareholders will receive
accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information of the Group
through the publication of annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and circulars. The Company also publishes all
corporate communications on the Company’s website at www.hosa.cn.
The Board maintains regular dialogues with institutional investors
and analysts from time to time to keep them informed of the
Group’s strategy, operations, management and plans. The chairman
of the Board and members of various Board committees will attend
the annual general meeting of the Company to answer questions
raised by the Shareholders. The resolution of every important
proposal will be proposed at general meetings separately.

Voting at general meetings of the Company is conducted by way of
poll in accordance with the Listing Rules. The poll results will be
announced at general meetings and published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. In addition, the Company
regularly meets with institutional investors, financial analysts and
financial media, and promptly releases information related to any
significant progress of the Company, so as to promote the
development of the Company through mutual and efficient
communications.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013.

Principal Activities

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
design and production of a wide range of mid-to-high end
sportswear products, including swimwear, fitness wear, sports
underwear and accessories, which are sold under the well-known
Hosa brand.

Subsidiaries

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December
2013 are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
the state of the Company's and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 79 to 83 of this
annual report.

Dividends

An interim dividend of HK4.8 cents (equivalent to approximately
RMB3.8 cents) per share was paid to our Shareholders during the
year. The Board recommended the distribution of a final dividend of
HKé.6 cents [equivalent to approximately RMB5.2 cents) per share
in cash to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) for the
year ended 31 December 2013, representing a total payout of
RMB86.0 million, subject to approval by the Shareholders at the
annual general meeting ("AGM"] to be held on Thursday, 17 April
2014.
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Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 146 to
148. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group are
set out in note 23(a) to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2013, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$326,028,000.
Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2013 are set out in note 23(e) to the financial statements.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2013 amounted to approximately RMB5,000 (2012:
RMB342,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment
Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group for the

year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 23(c] to the
financial statements.
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Directors
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2013 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Hongliu (Chairman]
Mr. Shi Hongyan

Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong

Mr. Zhao Yan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

Mr. Sun Ruizhe

Mr. Yao Ge

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the existing independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Each of the executive Directors on the Board had entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 16 December 2011 and thereafter may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing or
payment in lieu of such notice served by either party on the other.
The service contracts are automatically renewed upon expiration.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors on the Board had
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from 16 December 2011 and
thereafter may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by the respective independent non-executive
Director on the Company, and by immediate notice in writing served
by the Company on the respective independent non-executive
Director.
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During the year, the independent non-executive director, Mr. Sun
Ruizhe, decided to forfeit his director remuneration. The amounts
forfeited for the year ended 31 December 2013 are RMB180,000 (2012:
RMB180,000).

In accordance with article 84 of the Company's articles of
association, Mr. Shi Hongyan, Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong and Mr. Sun
Ruizhe will retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, all being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election, except Mr. Sun Ruizhe who due to his other business
commitment will not offer himself for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 38 to 46 of this annual report.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed below, there was no contract of significance to
which the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2013.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 December 2013, the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company had the following interests or short positions in the shares
(the "Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO”]) which have been notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO, including interests and short positions which
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company are taken and
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFQO, or which are
required to be and are recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:
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Number of Approximate

Shares subject to percentage of

options granted shareholding in

under the the Company/
Name of Capacity/ Number of Pre-IPO Share associated
Name of Director company Nature of interest Shares Option Scheme corporations
RIFERLEH
BERBERIE VI
stElIRE 8 e B 3% @ 8Y
SBARIE W R MY A% 1 18k £9
BN na&ia SR, EsHE iRinena kiR 8ot
Mr. Shi Hongliu"” The Company Interests of controlled 983,808,000 — 59.36%
corporations (Long position)
e S S IVNS] INSE T NET re)
Mr. Shi Hongyan Ho Born Investment Beneficial interests 26,233 — 26.23%
Holdings Limited
hte I fEE 5 EHBRERRERLT BniEm
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong The Company Interests of controlled 94,000,000? 2,379,000 5.93%
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Notes:

(1) Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial Group Limited
are beneficially owned as to 49.851% by Mr. Shi Hongliu. Mr. Shi Hongliu is
therefore deemed to be interested in the aggregate of 983,808,000 Shares held
by Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial Group

Limited.

(2) Yixin Investment Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong and
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong is therefore deemed to be interested in 96,000,000 Shares
held by Yixin Investment Holdings Limited. Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong also holds
2,379,000 share options of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed
to have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFOJ, which had
been recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or which had been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company (including their spouse and
children under 18 years of age) to hold any interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations [within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFQ).

Share Option Schemes

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme (the "Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) on 23 November 2011 for the purpose of
giving certain eligible persons an opportunity to have a personal
stake in the Company and motivating them to optimize their future
performance and efficiency to the Group and/or rewarding them for
their past contributions, and attracting and retaining, or otherwise
maintaining on-going relationships with, such eligible persons who
are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the performance, growth or success of the Group.
Options to subscribe for an aggregate of 20,500,000 Shares were
granted on 23 November 2011. The exercise price per Share is

By 51
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HK$1.28, representing a discount of 20% to the global offering price
per Share. Save as disclosed below, no further options were granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme prior to the Listing Date.
All options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may be
exercised in the following manner:

Exercise period

{7 & HA
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REDBHA ERBRS R MESHER
Bt E— L REBERIE - FIBRBESRLH
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718

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

OriTIREEBRENTRSBE AL

Anytime after the first anniversary of the Listing Date

FHBHEBFERNEICQRE

Anytime after the second anniversary of the Listing Date

EHBME _RBFRNIOEGME

Anytime after the third anniversary of the Listing Date

EFHBHE=BFENEOEHE

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2013 are as follows:

30 % of the total number of options granted

B IR W 88 AR IE 4R 216930%

30 % of the total number of options granted

B 1R 1 8 AR & 4R 2 8930%

40 % of the total number of options granted

B IR 1 88 AR IE 4R 216940%

BR20135 1283318 REBEBS R MESRER
st RONBRIENFBUN

As at
As at No. of share option 31
1 January BERiESE December
2013 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2013
R20134F R2013 4
Name & iid 1818 [e-gus] 27E 2X® 128318
Directors g5
Mr. Zhao Yan ichERras 3,800,000 — 540,000 — 3,260,000
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong BV E 2,660,000 — 281,000 — 2,379,000
Senior management ShERE
In aggregate oH 3,400,000 — 870,000 — 2,530,000
Other employees Hithfgg
In aggregate (SEat 7,490,000 — 1,256,000 — 6,234,000
Shareholders of distributors RN B —EREEHE
of the Company B9 A% SR
In aggregate BH 2,000,000 — 283,000 — 1,717,000
Total Mt 19,350,000 — 3,230,000 — 16,120,000
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No share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
were lapsed or cancelled for the year ended 31 December 2013.
Apart from this, 3,230,000 share options were exercised during the
same period.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme [the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 23 November 2011 for the purpose of giving certain
eligible persons an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company and motivating them to optimize their future performance
and efficiency to the Group and/or rewarding them for their past
contributions, and attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining
on-going relationships with, such eligible persons who are
significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to
the performance, growth or success of the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the Listing Date, i.e. 1,600,000,000
Shares. The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme to any one person (including exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by
the Board and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant.
There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme
are required to pay the Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the
grant on or before 28 days after the offer date. The exercise price of
the options is determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and
shall not be less than whichever is the highest of:

(a] the nominal value of a Share;

(b)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer; and

(c) the average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer.
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The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from the Listing Date, after which no further options will be
granted or offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in force and effect in all other respects. All options
granted prior to the termination of the Share Option Scheme and
not then exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable subject
to and in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2013, no option had been granted by the Board
under the Share Option Scheme.

Further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

Arrangement for Directors to Purchase
Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in “Share Option Schemes” above, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director of the Company or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other body
corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
as at 31 December 2013, the persons or corporations (other than
Director or chief executive of the Company) who had interest or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which were required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding in
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares the Company
) 165 7 23 5 18 g
ARR & & B, EstE iRin 8B [TENI=]slud
Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited " Beneficial interests 864,000,000 52.13%
(Long position]
B EERERAS" EmiEm )
Well Born Industrial Group Limited " Beneficial interests 119,808,000 7.23%
(Long position]
ERBEXEEEERAD" EmiEm )
Zehui Investment Holdings Limited Beneficial interests 120,192,000 7.25%
(Long position]
EIBREERERAT Bmigm ¥ 2)
Mr. Xu Zehui Interests of controlled corporation 120,192,000 7.25%
(Long position]
TR MRRIEHEE R D )
Yixin Investment Holdings Limited © Beneficial interests 96,000,000 5.79%
(Long position]
THRELEERERAE" EniEm ¥ 2)
Notes: By 5E -
(1) Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi Hongyan, executive Directors, are two of the (1) HOTESHHRTERBIEEEAERSELRERR

directors of the Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial

Group Limited.

(2) Mr. Xu Zehui is the sole shareholder of Zehui Investment Holdings Limited, he is

therefore deemed to be interested in 120,192,000 Shares held by Zehui

Investment Holdings Limited.

(3) Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong, an executive Director, is the sole director of Yixin

Investment Holdings Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company are not aware of any other
person or corporation having an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would require
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

On 17 September 2013, Ho Born, the Company and Goldman Sachs
[Asia) L.L.C., as the placing agent entered into a placing and
subscription agreement pursuant to which the placing agent agreed
to procure purchasers for (or, failing which, to purchase itself as
principal] 54,500,000 existing Shares owned by Ho Born to not fewer
than six independent placees at the placing price of HK$2.85 per
Share, and Ho Born conditionally agreed to subscribed, and the
Company agreed to allot and issue to Ho Born for such number of
subscription shares which is equivalent to the number of shares
actually placed under the placing at the subscription price of
HK$2.85 per Share. Details of these transactions are set out in the
Company’'s announcement dated 17 September 2013. The
subscription price for the subscription represents a discount of
approximately 9.52% to the closing price of HK$3.15 per Share as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on 17
September 2013. Approximately HK$147,397,749 (approximately
RMB116.9 million), after deducting underwriting commissions and
related expenses, was raised from the subscription to fund the
Group’'s research and development, advertising and promotion,
increase of production capacity and general working capital. For
further information on the use of proceeds, please refer to page 34
of this report.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2013.

swEEERAs = —axm 07

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
W

PR EXHESIHIN R2013F 128318 » KRR T
ESNREBTHRABUANTEETOEMAL
“Xﬁlﬁ"j& NS AR 0 K B RE AR £ P B IR IR
875 N HR S IR I SEXV BB 55 2 2 390 R BV R SR IR
EBFYRA SNERICKE » A2 ARL SR
?)%aa%?)i,ﬁﬂf%fﬂ%%éﬂm%ﬁz&?‘%B’]%aEﬂ%
NBmIK R °

BE HENB/LORLI) EMHE

R2013F98178 @ ¥ ~ IR SRS X (M)
BRETA T(T’EZ%@E%ﬁ@)J_L—fﬁ@E%&
RERZE EI RERIBODERERE A (3
fREERMINAIBITHE) SRR M 285 T
2O EBEREBE S 254,500,000 IR B
BRPRMEEFARDRNSBEILATR A TS
PEKRTLAERRER ML DB RGOS 3R
BITMENER LIRSRIRMN28BITZRE
BRECRHBECZHBERERMD - 25X
PRFBHIIR KNS BER2013F98178
Rnfhe REE2RBEER2013FI[17B ¥ X
FIEBREBEMB2ESRBRMIISE T2V M
BITENI52% - EIBRBES 147,397,749
THARE11698E T (KIOMEEHE R
BRABE2B)  BIERTNEB WS BERES
B IRSEER—REESSE S - BRIME
RIEATENEMER  B2ERBEEMLS -

REE2013F 128318 L FE - br EXXPTIREE
BN KL EAONELIMERE B
ENBORLEEM LHES -



68 HOSA International Limited Annual Report 2013

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
# ok

Connected Transaction

On 19 December 2013, Haosha Industry entered into a land use right
transfer agreement ("Agreement”) with Haosha Garments, whereby
Haosha Industry agreed to purchase from Haosha Garments, and
Haosha Garments agreed to sell to Haosha Industry, the land use
right of a parcel of land situated at Huashan Village, Shenhu Town,
Jinjiang, Fujian Province, the PRC, with a total site area of 17,948.00
square meters. The land is designated for industrial use. The
consideration for the acquisition is RMB6,600,000.00, representing

approximately RMB367.73 per square meter.

As at the date of the Agreement, Haosha Garments is owned as to
55% by Mr. Shi Hongliu, 25% by Mr. Shi Hongyan, 10% by Mr. Shi
Huangpao and 10% by Mr. Shi Yanggiao. Mr. Shi Hongliu is an
executive Director of the Company, therefore a connected party of
the Company. Mr. Shi Hongliu is also entitled to exercise 55% (more
than 30%) of the voting power at general meetings of Haosha
Garments. Accordingly, Haosha Garments is an associate of Mr. Shi
Hongliu and therefore a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

Further details of the transaction is set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 19 December 2013.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Haosha Industry, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company, has entered into certain transactions with Haosha
Garments.

Connected person

Haosha Garments is a limited liability company established in the
PRC on 24 October 1996, and is owned as to 55% by Mr. Shi Hongliu,
25% by Mr. Shi Hongyan, 10% by Mr. Shi Huangpao and 10% by Mr.
ShiYanggiao. Mr. Shi Hongliu is an executive Director and is entitled
to exercise more than 30% of the voting power at general meetings
of Haosha Garments. Accordingly, Haosha Garments is an associate
of Mr. Shi Hongliu under Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules and therefore
a connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.11 of the Listing
Rules.
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The continuing connected transactions

(a)

Procurement agreement with Haosha Garments

On 7 June 2011, Haosha Industry, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, entered into a procurement
agreement with Haosha Garments, whereby Haosha Garments
agreed to supply its fabric products to Haosha Industry from
time to time for Haosha Industry to manufacture Hosa
branded indoor sportswear products. The procurement
agreement is for a term from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2013 renewable for a further three years at the option of
Haosha Industry subject to compliance with applicable
requirements of the Listing Rules. Haosha Industry has the
right to terminate the procurement agreement at any time
before expiration subject to compliance with the Listing Rules.

In order to continue the relevant transactions with Haosha
Garments after 31 December 2013, Haosha Industry entered
into a new procurement agreement ["New Procurement
Agreement”] with Haosha Garments on 19 December 2013,
whereby Haosha Industry agreed to purchase from Haosha
Garments, and Haosha Garments agreed to sell to Haosha
Industry, fabric products from time to time. The New
Procurement Agreement is for a term of three years, from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2016, and is renewable for
another three year at the option of Haosha Industry subject to
compliance with applicable requirements of Listing Rules. The
annual caps for the transactions under the New Procurement
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December
2016 are RMB3,000,000, RMB3,800,000 and RMB4,500,000.

Haosha Garments has been a fabric products provider of the
Group and the Group expects itself to continue procuring
fabric products from Haosha Garments in view of their long-
term business relationship, which enables Haosha Garments
to respond to the order requests of the Group in a more
prompt and accurate manner compared with other
independent suppliers of similar products available in the
market, as well as the proximity between Haosha Garments
and Haosha Industry, which helps reduce the transportation
costs. The prices at which the Group procures the fabric
products from Haosha Garments are based on terms that are
comparable to those available from independent suppliers of
similar products, on arm’s length negotiation and on normal
commercial terms.
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(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group procured
fabric products of RMB1.98 million from Haosha Garments to
manufacture Hosa branded indoor sportswear products and
the amount of procurement fees paid/payable to Haosha
Garments was within the approved annual cap of RMB2.14
million (excluding value added tax].

Processing Agreement with Haosha Garments

In light of the fact that Haosha Industry lacks the in-house
facilities for dyeing and printing its procured fabric products,
Haosha Industry entered into a processing agreement with
Haosha Garments on 7 June 2011, pursuant to which Haosha
Garments agreed to provide dyeing and printing services to
Haosha Industry from time to time on commercial terms. The
processing agreement is for a term from 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2013 renewable for a further period of three years
at the option of Haosha Industry subject to compliance with
applicable requirements of the Listing Rules. Haosha Industry
has the right to terminate the processing agreement at any
time before expiration subject to compliance with the Listing
Rules.

In order to continue the relevant transactions with Haosha
Garments after 31 December 2013, Haosha Industry entered
into a new processing agreement (“New Processing
Agreement”) with Haosha Garments on 19 December 2013,
whereby Haosha Industry agreed to purchase from Haosha
Garments, and Haosha Garments agreed to supply to Haosha
Industry, dyeing and printing services from time to time. The
New Processing Agreement is for a term of three years, from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016, and is renewable for
another three year at the option of Haosha Industry subject to
compliance with applicable requirements of Listing Rules. The
annual caps for the transactions under the New Processing
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December
2016 are RMB50,000,000, RMB57,600,000 and RMB62,400,000,
subject to the approval of the independent shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting ("EGM"] to be
held on a date to be further announced by the Company.

(b)
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Prior to obtaining approval from the independent shareholders
of the Company at the EGM, the Company will closely monitor
the aggregate value of the transactions under the New
Processing Agreement to ensure that the applicable
percentage ratios in respect of such transactions fall within 5%.
In the event that the independent shareholders of the
Company do not approve the New Processing Agreement and
the relevant annual capls) at the EGM, the Company will
ensure that the annual transaction amounts of such
transactions fall within the 5% threshold and will make further
announcement as and when necessary. Further details of
such transaction are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 19 December 2013 and 27 December 2013.

Haosha Garments has been the processing service provider of
the Group and the Group expects itself to continue using
processing services provided by Haosha Garments in view of
their long-term business relationship, which enables Haosha
Garments to respond to the order requests of the Group in a
more prompt and accurate manner compared with other
independent suppliers of similar services available in the
market, as well as the proximity between Haosha Garments
and Haosha Industry, which helps reduce the transportation
costs. The prices at which Haosha Garments provides
processing services to the Group are based on terms that are
comparable to those offered by independent suppliers of
similar services, on arm’s length negotiation and on normal
commercial terms.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group incurred
RMB33.9 million for the processing services provided by
Haosha Garments and the amount of processing fees paid/
payable to Haosha Garments was within the approved annual
cap of RMB38.6 million (excluding value added tax).
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned connected transactions between the Group
and Haosha Garments, and confirmed that such transactions
were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms and on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available from
independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company's
auditors have issued their unqualified letter containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual
report in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange. The auditors’ letter confirms that the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions:

(1) have received the approval of the Company's board of
Directors;

(2)  have been entered into in accordance with the
abovementioned procurement agreement and

processing agreement governing the transactions; and

(3)  have not exceeded the cap disclosed in the Prospectus.
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Contracts with Controlling Shareholders

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Non-Compete Undertakings

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of his/its compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided
to the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition (as defined in
the Prospectus). The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been
complied with by the controlling shareholders.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business, apart
from the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business at any time during the year ended 31 December 2013 and
up to and including the date of this annual report.

Management Contracts

No contacts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands where the
Company is incorporated applicable to the Company.
Emolument Policy

The Group’'s emolument policies are based on the merit,

qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee periodically.
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The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes to motivate
and reward its Directors and eligible employees. Details of these
schemes are set out in the paragraph headed “Share Option
Schemes” above and note 21 to the financial statements.

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year.

Pension Scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution mandatory provident
fund scheme [the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for eligible employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the consolidated income statements as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in China
are required to participate in defined contribution central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiaries of the Group are required to contribute certain
percentages of its payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated income statements as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits beyond the annual contributions described above.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers
accounted for 17.4% (2012: 15.5%) and 49.2% (2012: 47.0%),
respectively, of the Group’'s total revenue from continuing
operations.
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Aggregate purchases from the Group’'s largest and five largest
suppliers accounted for 10.4% (2012: 20.2%) and 36.3% (2012:
47.7%), respectively, of the Group's total purchases from suppliers.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2013, did a Director,
his/her associate(s] or a Shareholder, which to the knowledge of the
Director owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital, have
an interest in any of the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers.

Auditors

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of
not less than 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as required
under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Bank Loans
As at 31 December 2013, the Company and the Group has no any

outstanding bank loans. The amount of interest capitalized during
the year ended 31 December 2013 was nil.

On behalf of the Board
Shi Hongliu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 February 2014

ESEMERAS T —aE®m (D

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
W

OREEFARORHEDNRBERER DA
EREEOHEDOVRIRIBEER10.4% (20125
20.2%) }36.3% (20125 * 47.7%) °

REE2013F 128318 L FEEOIGRE - il &
EF HEBAIMNESAAEBSRATRIK
BESUHNRRNRREBLAASFEFRHAED S
PEA—HHEERED -

% 2% 6

EEHBSTNBHAMBREI ERECEBE
B-RALNSEEBRRBFRAS LHRE IR
A& DABRBERRAT80I% 6N -

EHNLNRFRE

RIBFRNSFENNHEMNNMESAAR -
RERBH  MRIARBE2013F128318 1k
FE-BEFSLHRUMBEADRERSTE
BIOTRMBUNIBELRITRE -

IRITER

D

R2013F 1283318 » R SR REB I 0
REBEIRTEMR - BE2013F 128318 1EFE
PERVHNRETERS -

NEESS
Tito 33t 37

EFR

¥ 2014F282608



FINANCIAL

DN

77 02

Independent Auditor’s Report Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B BB IR S mOoRDmEHE
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Other Comprehensive Income mERETRER

mMOBmMEMEBREE

o) o4

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Notes to the Financial Statements
RO WBIRIRE 71 165 3R =% BT 5%

ol

Statement of Financial Position

RN &



wvEmERAs = —aasw ([

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

cpnac

To the shareholders of Hosa International Limited
[Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability]

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hosa
International Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”] set out on pages 79 to 145, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2013, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’'s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 February 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A oy 18 gk o L il 2 i W AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BZE2013F 128318 LFE (KAREIIT)

2013
Note RMB’000
B 5% ARETIT

Turnover x5 3 1,021,520
Cost of sales 8 & AR (431,209)
Gross profit Eifl) 590,311
Other revenue HbUg A 4 25,505
Other net income/(loss) Hith s,/ (F518) 33 58 4 2,775
Selling and distribution expenses i & K AL 85 AR (104,537)
Administrative and THREMEESR

other operating expenses (75,223)
Profit from operations &I i 438,831
Finance costs 871 15 Y 7R 5(a) (398)
Profit before taxation R 5 A1 il 5 438,433
Income tax P S 5t 6 (68,074)
Profit for the year F 2l iE 370,359
Other comprehensive income FEHMhERKRS

for the year
ltem that may be reclassified gJERNEESHHRE

subsequently to profit or loss: Bmelag:

Exchange differences on translation of % & b B 7 dth 15 HN B 2B

financial statements of operations 72 B) B9 87 5 #R 2= B9
outside the mainland China Er=R (7,513)

Total comprehensive income FEXTANRAE

for the year 362,846
Earnings per share (RMB) SRRBMN(AR T 10

— Basic — &R

— Diluted — B

The notes on pages 79 to 145 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in

note 23(b).

2012
RMB'000
ARBFIT

848,063
(333,874)

514,189

27,626
(315)
(91,499)

(70,414)

379,587
(568)

379,019
(47,907)

331,112

(175)

330,937

0.21

0.21

SB7IE 1458 B9 Y 5 18 AR B 15 3R &R 60 — 8F
oo EIR L S iEm AR RE E T EER R

5F 15 BN B 5E 23(b) ©
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As at 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi)
R2013F 128318 (CA ARBE I 70)

2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARETFIT ABR¥F T
Non-current assets FREnEE
Property, plant and equipment MeE - MENEE 11 59,126 46,200
Lease prepayments AT & 12 18,564 11,620
Intangible assets M &EE 13 499 190
Deferred tax assets FEiEfRIBES = 22(b) 3,514 6,869
Total non-current assets FRENEERE 81,703 64,879
Current assets mMENEE
Inventories 78 14 151,409 102,193
Trade and other receivables B 73 N Hth fE W R 16(a) 268,958 272,202
Pledged deposits P2EBER 17 17,684 98,278
Fixed deposits held at banks B BRE=@AN
with maturity over three months RITEHEFER 18(a) 723,950 327,977
Cash and cash equivalents NERIBESESEBEY 18(a) 335,199 402,536
Total current assets MENEEME 1,497,200 1,203,186
Current liabilities meEnga i
Bank loan RITEM — 86,890
Derivative financial liabilities mEeNsRi — 933
Trade and other payables & 7 I B Ath fE T R 19(a) 174,137 117,025
Current taxation BN HB iR 18 22(a) 8,710 11,120
Total current liabilities mEaeERs 182,847 215,968
Net current assets mMEMEEFE 1,314,353 987,218
Net assets/Total assets less EEFE TREER
current liabilities menafs 1,396,056 1,052,097
Capital and reserves BN fEE
Share capital A% X 23(c) 13,485 13,027
Reserves 15 23(d) 1,382,571 1,039,070
Total equity R zE 1,396,056 1,052,097

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26
February 2014.

Shi Hongliu
it 34 7

E Director
‘ Egd

The notes on pages 79 to 145 form part of these financial
statements.

BESSNR2014F 2826 BHERIRIEHIZE -

Zeng Shaoxiong
=R
Director

=
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B 755 5IR Dt %%

As at 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi)
R2013F 128318 (A A REEH717)

2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARETIT ARMEFIT
Non-current assets FRNE=E
Investments in subsidiaries RFEBLSINIRE 15 =
Total non-current assets FREEERAE =
Current assets mMEAEE
Other receivables HihEUW R 16(b) 31,737 273,404
Pledged deposits PEBRER = 86,480
Fixed deposits held at banks with ERABRE=MANRT
maturity over three months TEHER 18(a) 141,950 32,434
Cash and cash equivalents RERIRESEM 18(a) 102,975 721
Total current assets mEEELR 276,662 393,039
Current liabilities maafs
Bank loan RITER 86,890
Derivative financial liabilities mEeHsi 933
Other payables HLth f& I R 19(b) 324
Total current liabilities meEnaEdss 88,147
Net current assets MAEEIFE 275,988 304,892
Net assets/Total assets less EEFE BEEW
current liabilities mEasE 275,988 304,892
Capital and reserves BN fEE
Share capital A% X 23(c) EFA:L 13,027
Reserves Ee 23(d) 262,503 291,865
Total equity & &5 A2 28 275,988 304,892

BESESN2014F 2826 Bt RIRIETIZE -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26

February 2014.
Shi Hongliu Zeng Shaoxiong
Ite 33t 7 =R
Director Director
£5 £5

¥
%79%145%9’931?%&1’[\%5}2215%%8’9;%‘3% 3

The notes on pages 79 to 145 form part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
b T BE 45 52 B) R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BZE2013F 128318 LEFE CAARE )

Share-based

Share Share Capital Statutory  Exchange Other compensation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
CARR 7}
AR &I EE 37] Hitb REEMH RSB
RK RE i 1] it 1 HiERE il @zt
[note 23(c))  [note 23(d){il] (note 23(d)iil) (note 23(d)fiil] (note 23(d)(iv)] [note 23(d)v)) (note 23(d)lvi))
(B5E (B5E (st (B5E (M5t (Piyst (B5E

23(c)) 23d)) 23(d)liil) 23dliii) 23d)(iv)) 23(d)iv) 23(d)vi))
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wi ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT

Balance at 1 January 2012 R2012F1B18M & 13,027 475,550 60 47,047 638) 91,132 243 250,810 877,231
Total comprehensive income FERANARE

for the year - - - - (175) - - 331,112 330,937
Appropriation to BANEEEE

statutory reserve 23(d) i) - - - 14,918 - - - (14,918) -
Equity-settled share-based IAER B E AR X

payments 23(d)vi) - - - - - - 5,468 - 5,468
Dividends approved in respect SR FEH ENRE

of current year 23(b) - (161,539) - - - - - - (161,539)
Balance at 20121283181

31 December 2012 W3F1RBHER

and 1 January 2013 13,027 314,011 60 61,965 813) 91,132 5 567,004 1,052,097
Total comprehensive income FREANARE

for the year - - - - (7,513) - - 370,359 362,846
Share placed PRERY 23l B2 116440 - - - - - —14m
Equity-settled share-based AT 28 75 5 DARR 17 3%

payments 23(d)vil - - - - - - 2,584 - 2,584
Share issued on exercise TeERECCETRN

of share options 23(clli) 2 4922 - - - = (1,619) - 3,329
Dividends approved inrespect  FIRFEH ENRR

of current year 23(b) = (141,672) - = = = = - [141,672)
Balance at R2013F 1283188 &8

31 December 2013 13,485 293,701 60 61,965 (8,326) 91,132 6,676 937,363 1,396,056
The notes on pages 79 to 145 form part of these financial E79ZE 1458 BT SElE AR B B IR L 80— 3B A o

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
i Bl B R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi)
#HZE2013F 128318 LFE CAARBHI )

2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
By 5E AR T ARBEFIT
Operating activities REFE
Cash generated from operations KEMBIRE 18(b) 428,706 305,840
Income tax paid PSR (67,129) (49,785)
Net cash generated from KEFTMME
operating activities REFH 361,577 256,055
Investing activities BREEE
Payment for purchase of property, BEMFE  BELREENTR
plant and equipment (17,475) (3,572)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets BB EENT R (421) (74)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BENKE
plant and equipment PSR 18 — 68
Interest received 2 U B 8 15,045 2,741
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits PEREMRLD (8 H0) 80,594 (85,106)

Placement of time deposits with FARFPABBHE=EE

original maturity over three months FEHER (723,950) (327,977)
Maturity of time deposits with [REVHA B B =@ 8 < & &

original maturity over three months FRENHE %R 327,977 81,070
Net cash used in investing activities SETIMFRAIRE F % (318,230) (332,850)
Financing activities Al &5 EN
Proceeds from bank loan RITERERIA - 86,323
Repayment of bank loans BRIRITEM (88,644) =
Proceeds from shares issued TR IR AR ST 8 ST R D

under share option scheme P 1S IR 23(c](ii) 3,329 =
Net proceeds from placing shares B ERMATEMRIRIFER 23(c](i} 116,872 =
Interest paid PR (569) =
Dividends paid to equity shareholders P RRSEm

of the Company REBRE 23(b) (141,672) (161,539)
Net cash used in financing activities METMMAREFER (110,684) (75,216)
Net decrease in cash and RERRESEM

cash equivalents R $ 28 (67,337) (152,011)
Cash and cash equivalents at R1B180MRE R

1 January REEEM 402,536 554,547
Cash and cash equivalents at R12B31BHMRER

31 December RESEM 18(a) 335,199 402,536
The notes on pages 79 to 145 form part of these financial statements. SBT79ZE 1458 BY MY 53 M AU 7 FS iR = 89— 3B 17 ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FRABEIERN - 1A A REEFHIT)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 2 September 2010. The shares of the Company have
been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited since 16 December 2011.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards ("IASs”] and Interpretations issued by
International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB”).
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “"Stock Exchange”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(c] provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis, except that the derivative financial instruments (see
note 1(l)) are stated at their fair value.

(a)

(b)
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SEM AT - KR SR 82011612
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BB 2@ R BRI ®RSER
RSt ER (RS ER ) K
ERHER ZSFHEOVBRETR
CBBLIRAINKEREREE
fORDMBRLS(TERM]) E
SEMMAUCBEBRBIR - INE
BIRMcEZSSTRR M ZH Y
R -

BRSstEANETESERMH F SR
# el R E ST BB BR B 75 3R & &
Rl - BRAEIRKEBEREKLIHN
TR & 5t B8 85 )R £ 2 2 o] # 4% B K
e MNEB N BESSTHB B
PRI IR & A L At B TN 5k & B R B9
SIREEST BRI K5 ik S ERI M E
HBHHREFE2RMNGES WS
BERP BESKHERMEIDR -

MFRRNERERE

B E2013F 128318 LtFENFEO
R BERBBRLIREMBELD

ROTEERIB (R KRER
REBENEKIIN GRZFGESWH
BREGRIRMBTERERE LA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

(b) 87 ¥% ¥R R 69 4R T B ¥ (@)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (Continued)

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollars ["HK$"). These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi ("RMB”) as the functional
currency of the Group’s operating subsidiaries is RMB.
These consolidated financial statements presented in
RMB have been rounded to the nearest thousand.

The preparation of these consolidated financial
statements in conformity with |IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods If the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

RN E®RE (B
)  BRAEEKEHE LN
MEEBRARBTARED &
ZEGOVBRENARBZY -
MARBZ2VWNZSHROTHBHRE
WERBEEREANTIT

METOBBRVBERESENNZE
ROVMBRERET SEBRAFLBH
i ~ &5t RRIRER - s FHIE ~ &5 K
R 3% O 5% & PSR 89 & A &% P 2 R 69
EE BRE WAKHEXEH &5t
NIBRARRJARIBRMBERZSB RN
TROENBECRNEZEE®RRE
ZME BRGRBAHEBEEREE
ENGERBDE (ZSKRBERE

EREBMERRRBESI) OE
2o BRBRIEEMGFTELA

ST RBREABRKRNSRISESE -
8 Bt & st NIESTER BFBEST
BOHARS - RUME 5T IR fF B 12 5T B9 HA RS
W SR - i 12 5] ¥ IR 65 K 7R 2K HA RS
HBEFE  RIRES RARKAB Y
tESRIEET -

RERBBRVBRSERNGEIERE
PMEHGROVBREEBEEAYE
HHERGFABERROEEZK
BRERMEE2P 5T °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FRA BB HUAARE ST

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting standards

The IASB has issued several amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Of these, the following

developments are relevant to the group’s financial

statements:
o IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements
o IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

o Amendments to IFRS7 — Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments have no material impact on the
Group’'s consolidated financial statements as the
amendments were consistent with policies already
adopted by the Group. The Group has not applied any
new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect these returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions, cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

(c)

(d)
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(d)

(e)

ELEMERAS T —F5%  O(

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company's statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(i]).

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(i)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

o Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no
more than 20 years after the date of completion.

o Machinery and equipment 5-10years
o Motor vehicles 2-4 years
o Furniture and fixtures 3-5years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

(d)

(e)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FRA BB HUAARE ST

(f)

(g)

(h)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent software and are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit and loss on a straight-line basis over

the asset’s estimate useful lives. Software are amortised

from the date they are available for use over a period of

three years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use

rights paid to the People’s Republic of China ("PRC”)
governmental authorities. Land use rights are carried

at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see note 1(i)). Amortisation is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the respective periods

of the rights.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating

leases, payments made under the leases are charged to

profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease terms, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern

of benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease

incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.

Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the

accounting period in which they are incurred.

(f)

(g)

(h)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
trade and other receivables

Investments in subsidiaries, trade and other
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in subsidiaries, the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with
note 1(i)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 1(i){ii).

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FRA BB HUAARE ST

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,

trade and other receivables (Continued)

— For trade and other receivables, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate [i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors are included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade debtors directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;
o lease prepayments; and
o intangible assets.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less cost to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units] on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FRA BB HUAARE ST

(i)

(j)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period when the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1[i]), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period,
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, except where the derivatives qualify for
cash flow hedge accounting or hedge the net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case recognition of any
resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item
being hedged.

(m) Interest-bearing borrowings

(n)

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

(k)

(U

(m)

(n)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(FRA BB HUAARE ST

o) IREKIRESFEN

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

(p)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash

and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes

in value, having been within three months of maturity at

acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to
the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred, except to the extent that they
are included in the cost of inventories not yet
recognised as an expense.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
directors/employees and distributors is recognised
as employee cost and selling expenses respectively
with a corresponding increase in the share-based
compensation reserve within equity. The fair value
Is measured at the grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into accounts the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the directors/employees and distributors
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to profit or loss for the year of the review with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’'s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

(q) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

(p)

(q)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

IFA=RERUNE )

i) CARRfD B EENNR (@
MRERE R RE R Y R E
HERIEHBETTGE - B
TEFEEEANRSFT LR EEN
EORE  RETRINFE
ERHERNST AR WK
&N 8N IFIB R E - IR ER
BOH BABBEIHNEERR
THE NRREERLEHE
BIRE AR i 80 B (W R & 7K % &
NEBEAE) K REK
REEIRRRIRMNHEER
B9 57 &8 1% 14 M B B0k W RI PR
N - BRFBYIE m BP0 A & IR
BAER BEEERNBERIE
PECRETERZARNG
BfR aBRERE R (HISE
EMRRERBNE DL -

P S i

FZ P 1S T B 15 B AR it 18 A IR 7E
REERSREFNES - R AR IB R
FLEMBEERGBNENYER
miER EHEEREhEBDWD
FNEERNEaPEIANIRESE
AIEEBER T BEHhIREEE D
SHih AW @mNEENEn P’
‘:‘7\]\0

R H#A i TR R &F 2 & SR M UK a8 B9 YR A
R IR RARKRSHKRE B MG
HEBEPRMPMEXTE - DARRM
BEFEFENSHRIRFENEOHE -

FEEMIRE E K& & DRI A o R
NERMBSEE=RMEL B
MERNEERGEMRTHB RS
SHEBDEREREME 2B =
B FLEMASEN SRR BR
IR IB R R EN B IR o M A LE ©



96

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HOSA International Limited Annual Report 2013
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(FRA BB HUAARE ST

(q) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination],
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(q) Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

o in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

. in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(q)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(FRA BB HUAARE ST

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose

existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or

non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the customer
has accepted the goods and the related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes

value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Interestincome
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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(s) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(t)

(iii) Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group
for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

(iv] Rentalincome from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

The results of operations outside the mainland
China are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into RMB at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FRA BB HUAARE ST

(u) Borrowing costs

(v)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(] A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(a)
(b)

(c)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(il An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a)

(b)

(c]

(d)

(e]

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third party
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

(v) Related parties (Continued) (v) REEE @
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (i) e NIEO R RIS 5
following conditions applies: (Continued) HINEEBERE (&)

() The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled (fl  SBEEZ()Prsal A T2 G
by a person identified in (i). HZHBIES -

(g A person identified in (i)(a) has significant (g) M)a)FrsB A THEEE
influence over the entity or is a member of EBEATENABEZE
the key management personnel of the entity (or B (EzERENERT) =
of a parent of the entity). ZEEEBANE -

Close members of the family of a person are those —BATHNERMRENEBIRAT
family members who may be expected to influence, or HERBNXZDPARKEZALTHE
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the ZALTRENREMNS °
entity.

(w) Segment reporting (w) BEBIRE
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment KENBRTBBRENZRNEE
item reported in the financial statements, are identified NEBENETEH NDEEHORE
from the financial statements provided regularly to the BRSTHEEBRHFERNDES
Group’s most senior executive management for the IR B Y 1 7R & @) AN [E) 5 75 R IR 60
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the BERE DA -

performance of, the Group’s various lines of business.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and Bt RAE DGO RERNBFEER
are based on historical experience and other factors, REMAR(BRERESEERBERH
including expectations of future events that are believed to be RREBEHENSIEIRHE) -

reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements SABTHRNERE  FEZSZIRER
and other uncertainties affecting application of those policies B R R B fth NBEBAR R A K PT 2 %
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition BHREKRBRREHNHFAEN RS HE
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing VHBHBRESGHERNEE - FRB5THBR
the financial statements. The principal accounting policies are FHYNME1- REBBGE AREKRS
set forth in note 1. The Group believes the following critical SRR M BRI REEGMMERRR
accounting policies involve the most significant judgements & KBHIEr G5t -

and estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements.
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(a)

(b)

Impairments

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
an asset may not be recoverable, the asset may be
considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss may
be recognised in profit or loss. The carrying amounts
of assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined
below the carrying amounts. These assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and the value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to level of sales volume,
sales revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of sales volume, sales revenue and amount
of operating costs.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. These estimates are based
on the current market conditions and the historical
experience of selling products with similar nature. Any
change in the assumptions would increase or decrease
the amount of inventories write-down or the related
reversals of write-down made in prior years and affect
the Group’'s net assets value. The Group reassesses
these estimates at each end of the reporting period.

(a)

(b)
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Impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances
for trade and other receivables by assessing the
recoverability based on credit history and prevailing
market conditions. This requires the use of estimates
and judgements. Allowances are applied to trade
and other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will affect the carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables and thus the
impairment loss in the period in which such estimate
is changed. The Group reassesses the impairment
allowances at each end of the reporting period.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual value.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the
assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives are based on the Group’'s historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expenses for future periods are adjusted prospectively if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.

The principal activities of the Group are design, manufacture
and wholesale of swimwear, fitness wear, sports underwear

and swim and indoor sports accessories.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold less returns
and discounts.

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's

business segments. The primary format, business segments,
is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting
structure. No geographical segment analysis is presented as
substantially all assets, liabilities, turnover and gross profit of
the Group are attributable to the operation in the PRC.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

(c) BZKE fth [EUWFREREE

NEBSRBECEERLRERMND
mikin - BB T 5B P K E A EUR
BV O] UL @15 ) 16 51 E el {8 B -
EREEMERHEG - EBFH

WO BBIME 5K H &R
STIR 1 - 6 TR HA B BR B [R5k & 5t
EffAR ER=RAKTEGRGS
ST E) ARSI 09 8B 75 K L b & U TR BY
RBELAKBEERX  REERS
HESMREMTSEZSRERES -

(d) &

M BB N R & s RIS st R
HREEERUNEBKRAEAREGSS IH
FHRNFES - REBEHREREE
bt HFER MEER IO R
SHRNZHRNITE TSR - of HF A
DRBEAEBUAETHHRMUEED
KR UTERRBHNRMNIEERR
B HEBEBSHBRERNNE -
RIREARBE BV 3T E BRI S F B W B

B8 o

REBNEBZEBRKEES - RSB
BHANKARKERERNZE S 4 HIER
StEENRME-

EXRERPLEEnNEEBERER
a0 -

DEWEM AN REBEF DL - £2
HREGEFDL DREAEEEERR
PPHRBE D - BN REBRBAZHMNE
=B8R EFXRANENHREN PEHY
FEFEE QU E251E DS
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(RABEBEIN - BHLAAREHI)

3

Turnover and Segment Reporting (continued)

The Group has five separate segments within the continuing

operations:

— Design, manufacture and wholesale of swimwear —
Hosa ("Swimwear — Hosa");

—  Design, manufacture and wholesale of swimwear —

Water Cube ("Swimwear — Water Cube”);

— Design, manufacture and wholesale of fitness wear (“Fitness

wear — Hosa”);

—  Design, manufacture and wholesale of sports underwear
("Sports underwear — Hosa"); and

—  Wholesale of swim and indoor sports accessories
("Accessories — Hosa").

In presenting the information on the basis of business

segments, segment turnover and results are based on the

sales and gross profits of Swimwear — Hosa, Swimwear —

Water Cube, Fitness wear — Hosa, Sports underwear — Hosa

and Accessories — Hosa.

SEBNDBERS @)

REEBNKEBELCEXRFARERAEBRI
78

- KEFH-BEPHRST EERHME
(TKES—TED]D

—  KEHIKILKRKRS EERME
(TKEE —KIZBD

- RSmMNR EERME TR
Sw/M—iELD

- BIANHNRT -EERMETE
MAKR—IELD R

- XKERZERBHE o0t (B84

—EWD) -
WEBHBRELIENE - HPEED
REETIIRIENEED — BW KBS —
KIIF - RSB — 5  BBAK — %
WRER W8 R E RS -

Sports
Swimwear Swimwear Fitnesswear  underwear Accessories
—Hosa —Water Cube —Hosa —Hosa —Hosa Total
Kigah KEE  @BRH EBIAK s
=5y —Xih =5y —iEY —iEY st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETI
Year ended #HE2013F12B18
31 December 2013 IEFE
Turnover BEH 346,434 41,674 285,031 309,586 38,795 1,021,520
Cost of sales 5 E AR (126,351) (24,013) (96,057) (172,383) (12,405) (431,209)
Gross profit El 220,083 17,661 188,974 137,203 26,390 590,311
Year ended #ZE2012F12B318
31 December 2012 IEFE
Turnover =R 304,009 — 207,642 301,602 34,810 848,063
Cost of sales 3 E BUR (104,994) - (67,232 (150,048) (11,600) (333,874)
ross profit m 199,015 — 140,410 151,554 23,210 514,189
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Turnover and Segment Reporting (continued)

The Group’s turnover by geographical locations is determined
by the destination where the goods are delivered.

S 5 e 3 B R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

SEBNDBERS @)

REERWEBUBENDNERBATIDAE
R XRTBENHEE -

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12BNBLEFE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETIT

Domestic A
Overseas RSN

966,118 812,021
55,402 36,042

1,021,520 848,063

The Group has two and one customers with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's turnover for
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, respectively. The
amount of sales to those customer amounted to approximately
RMB286,154,000 for the year (2012: RMB131,826,000).

B £2013F K2012F 128318 1k @ @
FE KREBDHNEMER—SSPFPHN
RABENEEEXREH0% - RAF
B REZSEPNEBEERNRARE
286,154,000t (20125 : AR®5131,826,000
7T °
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4 Other Revenue and Other Net Income/(Loss) 4 HthIWAREUWE (B518)1FEE

Year ended 31 December

BE12RMNBLEFE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARBTIT

Other revenue Hith it A
Interest income — financial institutions N 2UWA — T BRI s 6,057
Government grants IS 48 86 17,786
Written back for long-aged liabilities RBAAENEEHO 3,751
Others Hith 32
27,626
Other net income/(loss) Hthihzs /(§518) F 28
Exchange gain b oo U 2 LAY 695
Net loss on forward foreign exchange INEREA BN 1E
contracts P ER (2,673) (933)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE K
and equipment SR UL = 53
Others Hith (9 (130)
(315)
Government grants of the Group were unconditional and were TREE B8V BUR 18 85 5 R 4 - I L A UK EY

therefore recognised as income when received. SR BULA °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

Profit Before Taxation 5 PR AR E

KBRS EBNMRBRAINERHORS
GIAN R RBRESSE !

Profit before taxation of continuing operations is arrived at
after charging/(crediting):

Year ended 31 December

HZEZ12B31BLEFE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T IT ARBF T
(a]  Finance costs: (a)  @AFEARK :
Interest on bank borrowings R{T BN R 568
(b)  Staff costs: (b) BIAAK:
Contributions to defined contribution REMRERIMST
retirement plans (note 20) AR (B 5E20) 4,944
Equity-settled share-based CAiEzm S E AR D
payment expenses (note 21) TRk (¥ 5E21) 5,468
Salaries, wages and other benefits e LTERHEMEN 55,077
65,489
(c) Otheritems: c) Efthlag:
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEENKAN
and lease prepayments Tl <& 9 85 368 304
Auditors’ remuneration Sstenbl e 2,280 2,160
Depreciation e 5,906 6,116
Impairment losses for trade & 7 & W R el (B
receivables B S 615 —
Written back of inventory provision FERBRO (1,040) =
Operating lease charges in respect BREAMENKE
of properties THEH 6,548 5,022
Cost of inventories” FEAmR? 431,209 333,874

Cost of inventories for the year ended 31 December 2013 includes
RMB44,344,000 (2012: RMB35,341,000) relating to staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation expenses and operating lease charges,
which amount is included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above in notes 5(b) and (c) for each of these types of expenses.

! HE201BFENANBLEFENESERREE
A R 44,364,000 7T (20124 © A R 535,341,000
JO) 0 NERE TR ITERBERZARK
SHEXHER MEMESRAMSTAMNSZS
BASZHA R 7E £ X FFEES(b) R () RINREN SR
o
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(RABEBEIN - BHLAAREHI)

6 Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement 6 HGZokEakKEtERHRAZERDP
of Profit or Loss and Other Fr 18
Comprehensive Income
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) EBREREMEZBHB WA
profit or loss and other comprehensive RPN Iats :

income represents:

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12BNBLEFE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTFT AREETIT

Current tax—PRC income tax BN HA it 1R — o B P 1S 5t
Provision for the year FEEE 46,919
Deferred tax iR SE i 1R
Origination and reversal of temporary EENRBOBEMEER
differences (note 22(b)) (BF5E22(b)) 988

47,907
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Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

S 5 e 3 B R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

(b) it I8 BA 5% £R 1% 5@ A iR &R 5t
S0SstEaE R :

Year ended 31 December

HE12H3MBLEEE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBEFIT
Profit before taxation [ s 81 /) R VA WACK) 379,019
Notional tax on profit before taxation, ¥ 58 A & 5 B A 1&g (&
calculated at the statutory tax rates YE 7B TR 251 8 B0 BRI Bl
applicable to the respective tax il 60 & i 1A (i)
jurisdictions (i) 109,608 94,755
Tax effect of PRC preferential tax PEE B MR FBN
treatments (ii) i 15 &7 28 (i) (43,904) (47,728)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT A == B9 e 7% 57 &8 89 2,535
Tax rate differential on deferred tax items  EFETR IBEY TR K= R 2,281 (1,655)
Actual tax expense BRI 68,074 47,907

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands ("BVI”],
the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax
as the Group did not earn any assessable profit
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax
("CIT") Law that took effect on 1 January 2008, the
statutory income tax rate of the Group’s subsidiary
in mainland China Haosha Industry (Fujian] Co.,
Ltd. ("Haosha Industry”) is 25%.

()l REHSHESNRRBERSH
S(REBERHS) MUK
B REBBREMNMESEH
ENRRBHERESHIOMS
s o

BRAREERSEE2013F K
20125128318 L 5 = I #& Rk
BRI RBNS B NS R e fE
srime MR - B L 10 f& S & 58 )
Sinst IR 1EM

(i) TRI|M2008F 1518 ERBIP
BEFRMER(TERMSmR
E o IREEDPE R HE R 7
BSHEX(BR)BRLI ()
J‘%¥J)B’]£Eﬁﬁaﬁ‘ﬂzﬁ
25%
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FRA BB HUAARE ST

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates
(Continued):

(ii)

(Continued)

Prior to 1 January 2008, Haosha Industry, being a
production-oriented foreign investment enterprise,
was entitled to a tax holiday of 2-year full
exemption followed by 3-year 50% reduction in the
income tax rate commencing from its first profit-
making year from a PRC tax perspective ["2+3 tax
holiday”). Haosha Industry commenced operations
and recorded taxable profits in 2007. Given its
operating period was less than 6 months in 2007, it
could defer its 2+3 tax holiday commencement to
the following year based on the then prevailing tax
regulations.

The CIT Law and its relevant regulations
grandfather the 2+3 tax holidays and require them
to commence on 1 January 2008 should they be
not started earlier. Accordingly, Haosha Industry
commenced its 2+3 tax holiday on 1 January 2008.
It was exempt from income tax for 2008 and 2009
and is subject to income tax at 12.5% from 2010 to
2012 respectively.

(b) i I8 A 5% B4 % i@ FH it 2R 5t
B0 S 5t iE 80 ¥ B (@) ¢

(ii)

(&

E2008F1R18R1 EHEH*
FREEREINERELEHR M
PERIAMS - IBEHSE%E
NEERBEEERBME
BRESHMME HE=FMHT
it e 200 2+ B0 18 2R ([7 % =l
¥MmBEERRD - BEWEXS
2007 F I E & - W %5 &SR
e ) - BB ER2007F N E
BHELRAEBRE RESE
BRI AR HW %=
¥MpFERBMIEEEN—F
ER5 -

EFEMREMAREBREZERR
E MW %R =0l - e 5 B RN
R B EMEEERS
PRim - RIB2008F 1818 2 F
6. WUt - 3E D 8 K R 2008F
TR1BMBEM %R =~k i3
BEH - HE3 % M M2008F
K 2009 B P 1S R » M E32010
F E 20125 12 iR K 12.5% 8 iR
PG -
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(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates
(Continued):

(ii)

(iii)

(Continued)

In accordance with the CIT Law, its implementation
rules and the relevant regulations, Haosha
Industry was granted the High and New Technology
Enterprise Status in 2013 for a valid period of 3
years from 2013 to 2015 which entitles Haosha
Industry to a reduced income tax rate at 15%
during the valid periods under the CIT Law and its
relevant regulations.

According to the CIT Law and its implementation
rules, dividends receivable by non-PRC corporate
residents from PRC enterprises are subject to
withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless reduced
by tax treaties or arrangements, for profits earned
since 1 January 2008. In addition, under the Sino-
Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangement and its
relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax
resident will be liable for withholding tax at the
rate of 5% for dividend income derived from the
PRC if the Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial
owner” and holds 25% or more of the equity
interests of the PRC Company.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

(b) 5 I8 8 5% BR 1% 3@ F it 2R 5t
%E’\]@%ﬁﬂﬂ’zﬂﬂ’\] HER @ ¢

i) (&)
RIREFRFSHRA - HEHEMD
RINTBRIER  EW BRI
0BFERTYSHMEME
FEE & B2013F £20155F -
BEUMP=F " RFREXMEM
EREBRAR  BEWDEER
B AP SR iR X &R ZE
15% °

(i) IR IR B ZE PR 1S M A R H & M ik
Pl FEPEHEXBEREPEHE
FRERERRRZLB2008F181
B B %6 Hik BY 89 R 5 69 10% M 2=
BN FRI0 M - PR IF 1& fe 75 1R &9
SN %2 HE A o RI & I O o L SN
TR 45 op 78 4 o & & i L HE &
HBERE i —20&ERS8
BMBEERRPEHLINNE
mEB AL WKE25%NA L
Rig Z2E8EBMBEREP
B ELEHRIWLARIZRIKZS%
it AR FRF0 e =
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(RABEBEIN - BHLAAREHI)

7 Directors’ Remuneration 7 ESEHHM
Details of Directors’ remuneration of the Group are set out REBESHONNFBHINALON
below:
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZE2013F128318BLLFE

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement

and benefits benefit Share-based Discretionary
Fee in kind scheme payments bonuses Total
e R Rt CABR R 1= BiE
wE  KRBMEH SHEIHER EHEMNTR el st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETIT ARBTIT AREBTIT ARBTT ARETRT ARETT

Executive Directors nTES
Mr. Shi Hongliu It SR S B
Mr. Shi Hongyan e I ME S A
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong SR E
Mr. Zhao Yan [iepepas
Sub-total IINEE

Independent Non-executive B JE T

Directors S
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan SENE b
Mr. Sun Ruizhe FRIWB A E
Mr. Yao Ge WEX e
Sub-total IINEE
Total ARE
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(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

7 Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 7 ESiHEM @
Year ended 31 December 2012 HZE2012F 1283181 FE

Salaries,  Contributions

allowances  to retirement

and benefits benefit ~ Share-based  Discretionary
Fee in kind scheme payments bonuses Total
e 2R BB CABRIDR W15
e KREMBH StEI R BEENMR feil st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000

ARBTIT ARBTIT ARBTIT ARBTIT ARETIT ARBTIT

Executive Directors NTES

Mr. Shi Hongliu B3 7 5 2 - 1,015 88 - - 1,103
Mr. Shi Hongyan Jite 16 ME St £ — 888 77 - - 965
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong SOERE — 635 55 753 - 1,443
Mr. Zhao Yan [=beE e — 650 69 1,076 — 1,795
Sub-total NG = 3,188 289 1,829 — 5,306

Independent Non-executive BIIEMIT

Directors -
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan SEN e — 250 — — = 250
Mr. Sun Ruizhe BRI fe - - - - - -
Mr. Yao Ge kX S & - 180 - - = 180
Sub-total I\5 — 430 — — — 430

Total st = 3,618 289 1,829 = 5,736
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(RABEBEIN - BHLAAREHI)

8 Individual with Highest Emoluments 8

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2012:
four) are directors whose remuneration are disclosed in note 7.
Emoluments in respect of the remaining one individual (2012:
one) are as follows:

B = A L
AERBEFMALD B (20126 : 3

LRES REVFIMRME7TIRE - 88
N—8(Q2012F : —3) ALOIFHIWL T :

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12BNBLEFE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTIT ARBFIT

Salaries and other emoluments i ® B E fth Bl
Share-based payments CARR D B B E BT K
Retirement scheme contributions RIS H R

924
170
22

1,116

The emoluments of the one individual (2012: one) with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

Lit—% (2012F : —B)KRSFMALH
FINFNYES :

Year ended 31 December

BHE12H31BLEEE
2013 2012
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A

HK$1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 2 1,500,000 % 7T
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(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders 9 N7\ O)iE & A% R & {5 il i

of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders KR ERBRREGHEENBRIBERN
of the Company includes a loss of RMB2,504,000 (2012: KRB HRENEENBEEBARE

RMB9,108,000) which has been dealt with in the financial 2,504,0007T (20124 © A R®59,108,0007T) °

statements of the Company.

Earnings Per Share 10 SERN

(a) Basic earnings per share (a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB370,359,000 (2012:
RMB331,112,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year of 1,616,528,000
(2012: 1,600,000,000).

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

SRENRN

SRERRRDIRE RS S @IE
7 R 2R & 15 I A R #8370,359,000
gt(2012%F : A B #331,112,000
T RFRAETEBRNETF
% $81,616,528,000 A% (2012 £ :
1,600,000,0008%) 5t &

& 48 AR N0 - 13 24

2013 2012
'000 '000
FAR TR

1,600,000 1,600,000

14,334 =
2,194 =

Ordinary shares at 1 January R1E1B80E®ER
Effect of shares placement on M2013F 982688 &
26 September 2013 RIDFE
Effect of share options exercised TIEERENSZ
Weighted average number of MR128318 8 & @R N01E

ordinary shares at 31 December AL

1,616,528 1,600,000
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(FRA BB HUAARE ST

10 Earnings Per Share (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

10 SKREMN @

(b)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of RMB370,359,000 (2012: RMB331,112,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,625,638,000 shares (2012: 1,606,914,000), calculated as

follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(diluted)

SR#BRMN

SRESRTNPRERASS BIE
m AR TR & 15 T B A B #5370,359,000
or (20124 @ A R #331,112,0007T )
BB AR N0 IE ¥ 19 811,625,638,000 B
(20125 © 1,606,914,00080 stE WO T -

&5 308 AR N0 RE 7 159 3 (I 58)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at 31 December

Effect of deemed issue of shares under
the Company’s share option scheme
for nil consideration [note 21)

12831 B8NS BR
N0E 15 25

TR IR 5) &8 AR iéE 5t 8l
REHBRFEZTRMN
(B 5E21)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted) at 31 December

R12831 B8NS BR
n0e 139 25 (#5%)

2013 2012
‘000 ‘000
FhR T8
1,616,528 1,600,000
TE
9,110 6,914
1,625,638 1,606,914
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

11 ME - BEKR

Machinery Furniture
and Motor and Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles fixtures in progress Total
[ I K il K2
LS & pat:2] ®E TR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEFIT ARETIT AREBTIT ARBTFT ARBETIT ARETIT
Cost: AR :
At 1 January 2012 R2012%F1818 29,330 25,137 5,166 3,268 — 62,901
Additions wE — 1,903 1,271 743 — 3,917
Disposals HE - — (173) - - (173)
At 31 December 2012 20125128318 29,330 27,040 6,264 4,011 — 66,645
At 1 January 2013 R2013F 1818 29,330 27,040 6,264 4,011 — 66,645
Additions wE — 1,125 270 1,957 15,480 18,832
Transfer of construction R IieEis
in progress - - - 215 (215) -
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 128318 29,330 28,165 6,534 6,183 15,265 85,477
Accumulated depreciation: RtiT&E :
At 1 January 2012 R2012F1818 1,673 8,022 3,295 1,498 — 14,488
Charge for the year FEIE 1,694 2,670 1,004 748 = 6,116
Written back on disposals HERED = = (159) = = (159)
At 31 December 2012 R20128 128318 3,367 10,692 4,140 2,246 — 20,445
At 1 January 2013 R2013F 1818 3,367 10,692 4,140 2,246 — 20,445
Charge for the year FEHE 1,694 2,382 933 897 - 5,906
At 31 December 2013 20135128318 5,061 13,074 5,073 3,143 — 26,351
Net book value: IREFE:
At 31 December 2013 R20135F 128318 24,269 15,091 1,461 3,040 15,265 59,126
At 31 December 2012 R2012%F128318 25,963 16,348 2,124 1,765 — 46,200

All property, plant and equipment owned by the Group are

located in the PRC.

Buildings are situated on leasehold land with lease term of 45

years in the PRC.

o

L5EF o

NEBRBEME - MEBEKREHURP

BFAERNPENEES Tith L TSR
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(RABEBEIN - BHLAAREHI)

12 Lease Prepayments 12 FAfTHE

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARBTIT

Cost: AR -

At 1 January R1B18 12,104
Additions =1 =
At 31 December R128318 12,104
Accumulated amortisation: Rtk -

At 1 January M1E18 242
Charge for the year FE#E 242
At 31 December R128318 484
Net book value: REFE:

At 31 December R128318 11,620
As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s interests in leasehold 20135128318 ' hEBEFEPHME +

land are held on a medium-term lease of 45 years in the PRC. WHNERADPHAMEERS  REALLF -
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(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

13 Intangible Assets 13 BEE
Software
it
RMB’'000
ARBETIT
Cost: 59N
At 1 January 2012 MR20126F1818 523
Additions WE 74
At 31 December 2012 120128128318 597
At 1 January 2013 R2013F 1818 597
Additions wE 421
At 31 December 2013 R2013F128318 1,018
Accumulated amortisation: REtHeE -
At 1 January 2012 MR20126F1818 345
Charge for the year FEHE 62
At 31 December 2012 R20126128318 407
At 1 January 2013 R2013F 1818 407
Charge for the year FE#HE 112
At 31 December 2013 R2013F128318 519
Net book value: REFE :
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 128318 499
At 31 December 2012 MR2012%F128318 190
The amortisation charge for the year is included in FEABEREFT AGoBEaNENLSE
administrative and other operating expenses in the BWGDRTHREMEERZM -

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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14 Inventories 14 F&
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement (a) &6 ,TJ ﬁ‘“ MnEXNFED
of financial position comprise: CARIBBEM#RM :
At 31 December
R128318
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREETFIT AR FIT
Raw materials [R 7Ry 74,281 32,477
Work in progress TR 11,582 5,608
Finished goods X G 65,546 64,108
151,409 102,193
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) & 3R Ejfaﬁ < st AERHN
recognised as an expense and included FETBENHWE :

in profit or loss is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

HZE12B31B8ILFE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT  ARBFT

Carrying amount of inventories sold PEESKRBE 432,249 333,874
Written back of inventory provision FEREBRO (1,040) —

431,209 333,874
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(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

15 RELINRE

The Company
JIW/N]
At 31 December
®128318
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T IT ARBEF T

Unlisted shares, at cost

FLHRM - RAUR —

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below:

Name of company

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

TXHIMELTNFS

Proportion of
Ownership interest held by
Particularof FBEMPIBIEEIELH
issued and the
fully paid up Company asubsidiary Principal activities

B AV B&ETR —E
YNGIEZY IR & h B HEHES YW= fiEArE FBEHK
Hosa Investment BVI/ US$1 100% —  Investment holding
Holdings Limited Hong Kong
("Hosa Investment”)
EWHREERERAE EBHERESS
(HEDHED s 17T 100% - REER
Hosa Group Holdings Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100% Investment holding
Limited ("Hosa Group”)
ELEERRERAT
(EDEBD ) 10,0003 7T - 100% REZER
Haosha Industry* PRC RMB121,500,000 — 100%  Design, manufacture
and sales of swimwear,
fitness wear, sports
underwear and swim
and indoor sports
accessories
S B =a)cy AR - 100% 325 RWERHEEKES -
121,500,000t S mi -~ FSHR KUK
K ERZ=EWEBNE
Haosha Industry (Datian) PRC RMB20,000,000 — 100%  Manufacture and sales of
Co., Ltd. [“Hosa swimwear, fitness wear, sports
Industry (Datian)”)* underwear and swim and
indoor sports accessories
SEWE X (KH) za)cy] A ER#20,000,0007T - 100% HEKRBEEKEH RSN

BRAS(ELEX

XBDH*

Haosha Industry is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the

- EHAXKUARKERER
B M

* EWEXRR—EEPEMININEREESR

PRC, and Haosha Industry (Datian) is the subsidiary of Haosha Industry MW 8 (KA) RIEWEBEN2013F11BH
which is newly set up in November 2013.

The English translation of the companies’” name is for reference only.
The official names of the companies are is in Chinese.

MNP BT -

ZELNOEWNRXEERSE - ZSF LT
NEXEBRP -
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16 Trade and Other Receivables

(a) The Group

16 EZKHEMEUR
a) K&KE

At 31 December

Trade receivables
Bills receivable
Less: allowance for doubtful debts

8 7 ' U
e
Rk

Trade and bills receivables
Deposits and prepayments
Other receivables

B2 R K EBRRIR
Be RN

H b f& YR

"12831H
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARBTIT
247,889 249,888
- 2,510
(615) -
247,274 252,398
17,693 13,866
3,991 5,938
268,958 272,202

The Group accepts bank and commercial acceptance

bills for settlement of trade receivables. As at 31
December 2013, outstanding bank and commercial
acceptance bills in the amount of RMB119,950,000
(2012: RMB61,000,000) and RMB224,000,000 (2012:
RMB228,800,000) respectively have been discounted to
the banks. As these bills have been discounted without

recourse, the Group has derecognised these outstanding

bills as receivables as at 31 December 2013.

REBEMARTRBEARR
B2 T8 % EU R 2013512
BB EWIRIT KB FE AR
FEHE DB AR 119,950,000
(2012 © A R #61,000,0007T ) K&
A R 224,0000007T (20126F :© A R #8
228800,0007T) IEE E BB IR E T IR
THREBAAKRER - BRZAK
REBRBIBEAEEBRIER
U REBR2013F128318 1K
IEERZBRIPA R RIBRIFRE
WK
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16 Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

(a) The Group (Continued)

(i)

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
and bills receivables [net of allowance for doubtful
debts) with the following ageing analysis as of the
end of the reporting period.

S 5 e 3 B R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

16 BH K HE fth B @)
(a) R&EBE @@

i) BRER DI
RE K EMEBRRA
W R ERR H’E(?DB?TEE
Bl RESHRNEKRER DT
NN

At 31 December

®’128318
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T ABRETIT
Within 1 month (R(EN=07 83,304 85,315
More than 1 month but within 1MBBLALB3@AR
3 months 120,369 143,746
More than 3 months but within BN LEBEENA
6 months 34,369 20,092
More than é months but within AR LEBIFERN
1 year 6,177 3,245
More than 1 year 1TFME 3,055 —
247,274 252,398

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 24(a).

As at 31 December 2013, current balance included
in trade and bills receivables (net of allowance
for doubtful debts] amounted to RMB238,042,000
(2012: RMB249,153,000). Amount past due was
RMB9,232,000 (2012: RMB3,245,000). Receivables
that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

NEBEEBRNEMFIBH
R BY 5% 24(a) ©

R2013F 128318 B K #E &
7 WK ER R & (R R K
B NNEHBRRARSK
238,042,0007T (2012F - AR
249,1530007T) - AT BRAR
#89,232,000T (2012F : AR
3,245,0007T) = i & %0 84 71 SR LB
BY & Wk IR B2 0 R 3 MR B A0 A2 8%
NEZEFPBER -
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16 Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 16

(a) The Group (Continued)

(i) Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills
receivables are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that the
prospect of recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off
against trade and bills receivables directly (see
note 1(i)(i]).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year is as follows:

2 5 &k H fth [ WK (@)
(a) R&EBE @@

(ii)

At 1 January m1A18
Impairment losses recognised PR B8
Uncollectible amounts written off A WO FRIE Hf B8
At 31 December 128318

(b) The Company

The balance as at 31 December 2013 mainly represents
amounts due from subsidiaries. The amounts are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment
terms.

87 kW R K EERR R
W fE
BEREZRERNERZERN
MERKEBEIRERIE &
EREESHARONKS T
HAUIERISH - FELBER D
MEBLEEEEZE DR K
fEWCRIR S (R M 160) -

FRN REBEEHWT

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  ARBTFR

862

(862)

(b) IR T

MR2013F128331BNBEREZSIE
fE ISP |8 X B SR IR © 52 R IR fB AR
B 2REBEEEEMRM -
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17 Pledged Deposits 17 EEHER
The Group ying: 3
Bank deposits have been pledged as security for bills payable (see IRITEREMENRIR (BHEE19) - 28
note 19). The pledged deposits are expected to be released BERMBAAR 2@ B W AR -

within 12 months.

18 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Fixed 18 WENRESEMNRIRTER
Deposits held at Banks =™
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) RENIRESEMBLAT
JAEMAM :
The Group The Company
K&EE YW=
At 31 December At 31 December

®128318 R128318
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTTT ARBTIT ARBTT AR®BTIT

Fixed deposits held at FRABE =@ 20

banks with maturity R1TEBMEMR

over three months 723,950 327,977 141,950 32,434
Cash and cash equivalent ~ JR&RS B FS AR R T M

in the consolidated mEeRENEE

statement of financial RIRERIRES

position and the B

consolidated cash

flow statement 335,199 402,536 102,975 721

1,059,149 244,925 33,155

Cash and cash equivalent represents cash at bank and RBEeRIBPSEHEEMAEZNRSHKR
in hand as at the end of the reporting period. NIRTERRFRIZE -
Certain comparatives regarding fixed deposits with RGoMBEMRRERGFEORTME
banks in the consolidated statement of financial TNBERTEHERNS THE
position and the consolidated cash flow statement have TRHEHEMNDBEUNREGRFERN
been reclassified to conform with the current year’s E=X U

presentation.
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18 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Fixed 18 MENIRESFEWMNIRTEH

Deposits held at Banks (continued) 17 ™K (@)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to (b) PR i A mliE MK SHGIR
cash generated from operations: EHEER -
Year ended 31 December
HE12A318LLEFE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBET T
Profit before taxation R e & ) 36 438,433 379,019
Adjustments for: PG RIEE P
— Depreciation — e 5,906 6,116
— Amortisation of intangible assets —EHEEERTEN
and lease prepayments e & # 85 368 304
— Gain on disposal of property, —HEMX - BMER
plant and equipment 525 U - (53)
— Finance costs — 87 5 AX R 398 568
— Interest income-financial institutions —MREU A — F /b E (11,735) (6,057)
— Equity-settled share-based payments — ARG EUAR M 2,584 5,468
— Written back for long-aged liabilities - RHABRNEEHED - (3,751)
— Written back of inventory provision —F5EE#EE0Q (1,040) —
— Impairment for trade receivables — BREWRIAR & 615 -
— Uncollectible amounts written off — A UR (@ FRIA H 5E = 476
— Foreign exchange gain from — BINEERMTE e EWGS
foreign loan (1,754) —
— Loss on forward foreign exchange —INERHIS N E
contract 2,673 933
436,448 383,023
Changes in working capital EEETED
Increase in inventories FEIBN (48,176) (2,132)
Increase in trade and & 7 W I ELfth
other receivables & UL FR 38 10 (682) (42,705)
Increase/[decrease] in trade and 87 K B Ath fE TR
other payables 1800, GRt ) 41,116 (32,346)
Cash generated from operations KEmMBIRE 428,706 305,840

.




19 Trade and Other Payables

(a)

(b)

The Group
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19 EZKHEMEN R
a) K&KE

At 31 December

m"128318
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFIT AREET T

Trade payables

Bills payable

Receipts in advance

Other payables and accruals

&8 5 &R 50,987 28,231
& 1Y SR 4R 60,945 46,447
A UL R 5,634 1,042

Hitb &I MR ESTER 56,571 41,305

174,137 117,025
Bills payable as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 were R2013F 20125128318 89 & 1T
secured by pledged bank deposits as disclosed in FHEACBEBRTEREMBIOR
note17. BIRMIEE17 o
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be FESZ2REMENRBRR —F
settled or recognised as income within one year or are NS NERBUBRASIZBEKEE -

repayable on demand.

Included in trade and other payables are trade and bills NEBEZREMENLTRRN - EHEN
payables with the following ageing analysis as of the end RREMNRBERRSHROERR D

of the reporting period:

a0 :

At 31 December

m"128318
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFIT AREET T

Within 1T month

More than 1 month but within 3 months
More than 3 months but within 6 months
More than 6 months

REEIA 49,249 21,205
TMBAMN EB3EAN 27,189 S74lb3
3BAALBBAN 34,915 19,531

6B ALA £ 579 (7%

111,932 74,678

The Company (b) IR T
The balance represents accrued expenses and is Z o BRIERTER - AR —F

expected to be settled within one year.

NS ° g
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Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal government authorities
whereby the Group is required to make contributions to the
Schemes at the rates of 18% to 20% of the eligible employees’
salaries. The local government authorities are responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF scheme”] under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
and not previously covered by the defined benefit retirement
plan. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF scheme, the Group and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$25,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment
of pension benefits associated with the Schemes beyond the
annual contributions described above.

The Company has two share option schemes namely, the
Pre-IPO Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”] and the Share Option Scheme, which were
adopted on 23 November 2011.

On 23 November 2011, the Company granted options to
subscribe for an aggregate of 20,500,000 shares of the
Company to its directors, senior management, employees and
distributors under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, being
80% of the initial public offering price.

51 & it FRIR 5t &l

TRIFPEIBRISS TARRIIER  IREBE
PEHAOMEL LSS HRBPEHDRMIKE
SMPREHRBINGSH B (58] -
Rt REBHMRROCERBEEHR T
18%E20% 05t B R - EH BT KRS
SMBERNTERMEENEEZSE -

REBEMIRER S B @H 1 QR st 8k
RS EREFRNEENDZER B
BEUARSRREHREBIMSENIE
BERI—IR@H QKT ([Ri&
EstEl)) - RSt R —RBBIXET
ABENRE RIS - RIFRE S
stE RMEERERERESBRRESERH
WARS%OTEIHRR ESREBBRH
UZ A 8925,00058 7T ° st B MBS R E -

br Lot & 2 R ON - IR @ R R L it 5t &)
EREBRMETBNOMIRMS W& H b
EREE-

A B 20116 1523 B #R 5 7 I8 88 B
ISt B0 2SR 22 O 55 5 A R S A AR e
B (TR 22 9 5 5 A R I 51 8 ) R 8
Bigst) -

R201MEF11H238  RRERBEE IR
RHEFBREFTEOESZE - SKEEA
B -EEKRDEIRBIRERLHARE
18 8980% 3% % & +£ 20,500,000 0% 7K 2 &) A%
NBIRB AR IE -
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21 Equity Settled Share-based Transactions

(Continued)

The Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for a period of
10 years ending on 23 November 2021. Pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may invite, at
their discretion, eligible participants, including employees
and directors of any company in the Group, to take up options
to subscribe for shares of the Company to a maximum of
40,000,000 shares. The exercise price of options under the
Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the board of
directors at its absolute discretion but in any event will not be
less than the higher of:

(i} the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date, which
must be a business day, of the date of grant;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

(iii)  the nominal value of the Shares.

S 5 ¥ 2 Wit

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

21

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

%m&%&%%w\ﬁ%fﬁﬁ%%%
R % (1&)

BRESTENE IR R/I0OF - HE202]
FNEBBRIL - RIFBRESTE AR
SESINBHFCEBSRE (BB
SEENOUL2INEERES) ERNT
B 2 3R 40,000,000 A% 7K 2 ) AR 1) 89 45 AR
& - BRIESTE THNBRIETEESDHE
SSreiBEE  EEBUIASHER
MINESSE :

(Il REBEREEBRBEFXRB)BX
PrEB®mREXMINNBRMODUEHE:

il EERLECMALABEXBEAMA
SOREBEMIIRMDFHWDE
54

i) ARf2®E-
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21 WRBRGEEURMNDEE
R %5 (@)

(a) REBIERMAEIERHFWT -

21 Equity Settled Share-based Transactions B

(Continued)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants
are as follows:

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme () BXRXLEEE[BRIE
st J
Options granted on 23 November 2011 M20MF118238 B E B
i AR &
Number of Vesting Contractual life
options granted conditions of options
2B 85 Az g
B8 55 B 1 BHFH
Options granted to directors 6,460,000 Note (i) Note (i)
RYESHNERE B 3£ (1) B 5 (1)
Options granted to senior
management 3,400,000 Note (i) Note (i)
RYSHREEENERIE B 5E (1) By 5E (1)
Options granted to other employees 8,640,000 Note (i) Note (i)
RYHMMESNERIE B 5E (1) By 5E (1)
Options granted to distributors 2,000,000 Note (i) Note (i)
Ry — R IHE 08 AR IE B 5E (1) B 5E (1)
20,500,000
Note (i):  These options are exercisable during the period BysEl) : ZEWRIE AN S ER2011

commencing from the day immediately following the
expiry of the one year period after 16 December 2011 (the
“Listing Date”), and ending on the day falling five years
after the 23 November 2011 (the “Granted Date’),
during which, (a) up to 30% options granted may be
exercised on or prior to the end of the second year
after the Listing Date; (b) subject to (a), up to 60%
options granted may be exercised on or prior to the
end of the third year after the Listing Date; and (c]
subject to (a) and (b), all outstanding options may be
exercised prior to the expiry of the said exercise
period, failing which the options will lapse and no
longer be exercisable.

F12B168T LM BHD &
—FHBER2BREE
20MENB238(( & B B
BMDEAFLENMBRNGD
% FEUHIR ()2 230% 8
EREBREIN LHBMH
BRE_FFRIA TR
(b]E 260%8 2 R & % Iz &
UREMBHEE=FFRK
2 ATR CRZ (&) BVARBR) ;
R (c) Pl B 18 7R 17 102 60 8 AR &
o iR A 4t 17 12 #A [8 @ Al 17 12
(RZ R RbLIBARR) - WK
EOR Z25BRESEN
BABIYTE-
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21 Equity Settled Share-based Transactions 21 NigmBEUAKRMREEH
(Continued) X 7 (18)
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants (a) BREMNIERRIFHFL T :
are as follows: (Continued) (8)
(i) Share Option Scheme (i) EBBRRIES S
At 31 December 2013, no options had been granted M2013F 128318 » 1] & IR &
under the Share Option Scheme. BB AR ME ST B2 B R0 B8 AR E -
(b) The number and weighted average (b) % A% iE 69 8% B K2 10 iE F 15
exercise price of share options are as fFEWH:
follows:
2013 2012
Exercise No. of Exercise No. of
price options price options
TiEfE BRIEHNS TEE BREHES
Outstanding at the REN B ARTE HK$1.28 19,350,000 HK$1.28 20,500,000
beginning of the year 1.2887T 1.2838 7T
Exercised during the year FRET®E HK$1.28  (3,230,000) = =
1.283 7T
Lapsed during the year FRBEEN — HK$1.28 (1,150,000)
1.28%8 7T
Outstanding at the end of R EFREKRIT HK$1.28 16,120,000 HK$1.28 19,350,000
the year 1.28F87T 1.2878 7T
Exercisable at the end of REROFITH HK$1.28 8,380,000 HK$1.28 5,805,000
the year 1.2887T 1.28% 7T
The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had R2013F 128318 B R1THENE
an exercise price of HK$1.28 (2012: HK$1.28) and a ARENTT BB R1.28% T (20124 -
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.9 years 1.28%70) - NIERBRSNFHRIR2.9
(2012: 3.9 years). F (20127 1 3.95F) °
e
e el F




152

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HOSA International Limited Annual Report 2013

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FRA BB HUAARE ST

(c) Fair value of share options and

assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on a binomial lattice model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
binomial lattice model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value at measurement date

RtEBHRREE

Share price

RIDE®

Exercise price
BB

Expected volatility
8 HA R 18

Expected option life
%5 BRI YA 51 & A

Expected dividends
REIRR

Risk-free interest rate
S [ i ) =<

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

(c) BRENL RBEERRSR

i3 14 P IR B 8 AR 1 1T EXAS AR 755 89
rREE DN2ELREBERIEN
NRBEFE-FMREBEREAR
AEBEGER _BERWMERA
S-BERENSHFHIIN AR
N RBPBOLNRPS AR
RO PBIR L o

BARMEB L B E KRR

HK$12,439,818
12,439,818 JT

HK$1.60
1.6038 7T

HK$1.28
1.28% 7T

51.40%

Syears

55

5.06%

0.67%

TR HA R 03 DA IE 2 IR i (1R 4% 8 AR & 89 10 &
FHMBRFRF R REE WRERD
N E S 808 R B BUROR 18 B9 (£ o 3R
BV PARE - RPRINELRRR
FEPIIRATHRAARRNESHIHR
NBEGHELEEAFE -
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22 Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement 22 FOMBRARKXRPAMEH
of Financial Position
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) &S8R IR TP BIRDHA
statement of financial position e I8 15 :
represents:
At 31 December
®128318
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETF T AREETF T
Provision for PRC income tax b B Pfr 15 2 43¢ 5 mz
(b) Deferred tax assets recognised: (b) BERABELEHRIBSE :
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in IR 4R © 07 55 iR % 2% P 68 3R B9 3 & i
the consolidated statement of financial position and the BREEMAMNBORFREENN N :
movements during the year are as follows:
Provision of
impairment  Provision for
of trade impairment
receivables of inventories Accruals Total
B 7 & WO FERE
BRE BiE fEst&R ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBEFIT ARBTIT ARBFIT ARBTIT
Deferred tax arising from: REMIBESE :
At 1 January 2012 M2012F1818 108 271 7,478 7,857
Charged to profit or loss 48 W0 BR (108) (1) (869 (988)
At 31 December 2012 R20126128318 = 260 6,609 6,869
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss MR8 M5t A~ (F0FR) 92 (260) (3,187) (3,355)
At 31 December 2013 R2013F128318 92 = 3,422 3,514
(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised () BRERNELERIESE
As at 31 December 2013, temporary differences relating i 2013512@31 B B K&EH ?_
to the undistributed profits of the Group's wholly PHARKENEZENE LD B’] R D

owned subsidiaries in the mainland China amounted
to RMB957,235,000 (2012: RMB586,266,000). Deferred
tax liabilities of RMB47,862,000 (2012: RMB29,313,000)
have not been recognised in respect of the withholding
tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits, as the Company controls the dividend
policy of the subsidiaries in the mainland China and the
Directors have determined that these profits are not
likely to be distributed in the foreseeable future.

KA EBEENBEEEZEREAR
#% 957,235,000 7T (2012F © A R
586,266,0007T ) < & L& v 1R & & A
&R #547,862,0000T (20125 : A R 8
29,313,0007T) U & R R 2 I’ 2 F R
BHMEEENNRIDMETER
[RA 2 AR B 2 il o B A b by B
INRIBR MESLEBRZS
MMEEJ RRKRAANCESET D
K °
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23 Capital, Reserves and Dividends 23 EN-REREEERSR
(a) Movements in the components of equity (a) ESEAMIBNBIE SN
The reconciliation between the opening and closing FREBNGORRASEI D 2 )
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated RIKRGHROEERH NGO E
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of BE e AR R FHEFRNOED
changes in equity. Details of the changes in the BRI DB eNFISHIL N :
Company’s individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set below:
The Company /NS
Share-based
Share Share Exchange compensation
capital premium reserve reserve  Accumulated
(note 23(c)) (note 23(d)(i))  (note 23(d)(iv))  (note 23(d)(vi)) losses Total
CARR 193 R B
A% 7K B% 193 32 18 (& 52 it s BIRHERE
(Bif5E23(c)) (BiF5E23(d)G0)  (RifE23(d)liv))  (BfF 5E23(d)(vi) Rtk @t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Bff 5% ARBFIT ARETIT ARBF T ARBFIT ARETT ARETIT
At 1 January 2012 R2012F1818 13,027 475,550 (638) 243 [17,936) 470,246
Total comprehensive FNEERHAR
income for the year - — (175) — (9,108) (9,283)
Equity-settled share- CARE B & A
based payments R 17 sz ¢ 23(d)(vi) = = — 5,468 — 5,468
Dividends approved in TR FE#OE
respect of current year MR R 23(b) - (161,539) — - - (161,539)
At 31 December 2012 M2012128318
and 1 January 2013 K2013F 1818 13,027 314,011 (813) 5711 (27,044) 304,892
Total comprehensive FNEERRBE
income for the year - - (7.513) - (2,504) (10,017)
Share placed EhSRH 23(c](i) 432 116,440 — - = 116,872
Equity-settled share- CAREZ B & A
based payments R 1n S fd 23(d)(vi) - — — 2,584 — 2,584
Shares issued on exercise T fEfE R 22
of share option BITRMN 23(c](ii) 26 4,922 — (1,619) = 3,329
Dividends approved in RMAREZHE
respect of current year R 23(b) - (141,672) — - - (141,672)
At 31 December 2013 M2013F 128318 13,485 293,701 (8,326) 6,676 [29,548) 275,988
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23 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continued) 23 BN ERNERR @
(b) Dividends (b) R
Dividends declared attributable to the year: RFEESRKNRR :
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

(c)

AREFT ARBTIT

Dividends declared and paid during FREMMIRNHRE

the year 141,672 161,539
Dividend proposed after the end of RIS IR ERIRR R

the reporting period of HK6.6 cents SAR6.6381

per share (2012: HK6.3 cents (20125 : 8RR 6.3BA)

per share) 86,018 80,849

227,690 242,388

The dividend proposed after the end of the reporting BREPRRERTORRULBERKS
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end HRERREE -
of the reporting period.
Share capital (c) ARIN
Movements in the Company’'s authorised share capital RSN EERREHNU T :

are as follows:

Nominal
value of
Number of ordinary
Par value shares shares
SKREE BneE TEREE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ 000
BT T FET
Authorised: EE
At 31 December 2012 and R 20125 KR 20134

2013 128318 0.01 10,000,000 100,000
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23 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

Movements in the Company’s issued share capital are

23 EN-RREBERERS @

(c) BRZN (@)
KA RTRAEENNT :

as follows:
Number of Nominal value of
shares ordinary shares
BRiNEE SRR BE
Note ‘000 HK$'000 RMB'000
ff 5 TR TEt ARBETIT
Issued and fully paid: PERITRERE:
At 1 January 2012, R201281818 -~
31 December 2012 and 20125128318
1 January 2013 F20135F 1818 1,600,000 16,000 13,027
Shares placed [ ==): 4] (i) 54,500 545 432
Shares issued under ERESTEI TN
share option scheme 2 EETRMN (ii) 3,230 32 26
At 31 December 2013 R20135F128318 1,657,730 16,577 13,485

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meeting of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

SBERFEBABRERERAKS KN
RR WIJERRIKXKEBEEBRB
—BRENEBE—R - HREKLIHNR
rEE FMEEBRN=TBLESE

S

Bk
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(c) Share capital (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Shares placed

On 26 September 2013, the Company issued
54,500,000 shares with a par value of HK$0.01
each, at a price of HK$2.85 per share by way of
placing. Net proceeds from the placing amounted
to RMB116,872,000 (after offsetting the
commission and other expenses relating to the
placing of RMB6,285,000.

Shares issued under share option scheme
During the year, options were exercised to
subscribe for 3,230,000 ordinary shares in the
Company at a consideration of RMB3,329,000 of
which RMB26,000 was credited to share capital
and the balance of RMB3,303,000 was credited to
the share premium account. RMB1,619,000 has
been transferred from the share-based
compensation reserve to the share premium
account.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company may
be applied for payment of distributions or dividends
to shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve in the consolidated statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2012
and 2013 represented exchange differences and
the excess of value of assets injected to Haosha
Industry by the investors, which was accounted for
in equity under capital reserve.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

(c) BN (@)

(i)

(ii)

BB SR M

R2013F 98268+ IR 2 8 LA
BeEH RS AR285EITHIE
& B8 1754,500,0000 8RB &
0CO1BITZiRM - BEEEMT
IR P &R 2 A R #5116,872,000
7T (385 A R 56,285,000 7T 8914
ENREEEHOEMER) -

THEBERECERTRM
FR THERBBAREBA
&R #3,329,0007T R & K 2 3
3,230,000 R LB HPAR
#26,0007T 5t A BR A - BRZE A
R 3,303,000t 5t AR DR B
Bk - AR #1,619,0007T 2 8 K
BROBEW2HEREBEEAR
PNEBER ©

d) EEMEEREHN

(i)

(ii)

R in &

REBEMEHS LA "o
BIBR 1) 18 7k o] R Y D IRt
RR]RYRR  EEBEREIRM
DRAKRRAB P& KA
RERNBEXRFBRPEERH

& e

(=PINE

M20127F }2013F128318 -
MO MBI IR KA E R
BIEMNEZBRKEBENS
WEBRZZNHEEEBENS
D ZSERARINBER P
HERGEH -
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(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Statutory reserve

According to the Articles of Association of Haosha
Industry, the entity is required to transfer part of
its net profits (after offsetting prior year losses),
as approved by the board of directors, to statutory
general reserve. Haosha Industry is required to
appropriate general reserve at 10% of its profit
after taxation, as determined under the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. For
the year ended 31 December 2013, such reserve
reached the aforementioned percentage, thus no
further appropriation is required.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve of the Group comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of
operations outside the mainland China which
are dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in note 1(t).

Other reserve
The other reserve as at 31 December 2013
comprises the following:

— the difference of RMB%1,124,000 represents
75% of the historical carrying value of paid-
in capital of Haosha Industry amounting
RMB91,125,000 acquired over the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company
amounting HK$1,000 (RMB equivalent of
approximately RMB833); and

—  the difference of HK$9,999 (RMB equivalent
of approximately RMB8,000) between the
historical carrying value of entire paid-
in capital of Hosa Group amounting to
HK$10,000 and the consideration of HK$1
acquired by Hosa Investment.

(d) GEfRMEERBEN @
liii) A

RFEDVEFRNEBER
Rl ZEBRMABBERES
SN EEZENDB
GRBBEFEBEBR)EEATE
—REH SV EXERABEIR
BRPEStRMUARZEZREE
B9 B e 12 )@ 7 89 10% 5B 1F — AR
B BEERHBRBRERGEM
& R §950% ° & £2013F 125
JIBLEFE zFEHBERERE L
MB Nt Bt EAE— B

E=nd
TA ©

liv) BESe

REBNERRBRIERED
B R b 15 O SR FE 8O B FS R R PR
EEHNMEINEEZER
&R 1% AR BY SE1(t) 3 51 89

RYLARE -

v HitfE

MR20135F 1283188 E th (E #

815 NIEIA :

— =8 ARM91,124,0007T
BHRWEEDE
ERELFRBDEKT5% B
A R 1591,125,0007T 8
BRASETHRDB
8% 81,0008 7T (AR 8
FEHOARBES33IT) B

ni R

- BHEBHEEZHEWSER
[ &b 8k @ 18 /% #210,000)8
TREDKERBENY
8178 T B9 = 89,9998
TANRBSENARE

8,0007T) °
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Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vi] Share-based compensation reserve
Share-based compensation reserve represents
the fair value of share options granted to certain
directors, senior managements, employees and
distributors of the Group.

Distributability of reserve

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves (including
share premium and retained earnings) of the Company
as at 31 December 2013 was HK$326,028,000 (2012:
HK$352,972,000).

Capital management

The Group’'s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for its shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of
risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholders returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

fERMEERBEN @

vi) CABRfn BB EBNEERE R
MAERODBEENHEZRBIS
REBETES SHREEBA
B -EERDEBERNER
R EE -

of f# 53 i f5% 8

RS N2013F 12831800 # 5
IRERHRB(BEBR D EEN RS
) ) J5326,028,00058 T (20124 -
352,972,00078 7T) °

SMNEE
REBERERZSEEBNRE

REBEANFECE EMBEBR
R 8] BR 18 155 2 K 15 7 6o & 18 X DA
CEMTNESME “ERHERR
NEMN @B EH RO KREN -

REBBIRNRERHSRRBET
RYNEER AEBSRRORIB
M N HEBE 2 B S B RMKF R
280 E AR R 7 R B0 IF = X (R P& 2
B EX S T & - I O FE AR AR i 80 &
tHERRBFELHE -

TR B) I BB &8 72 S idh 8 52 PR AR Hh
BHANOEREXR -
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Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’'s business.
The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are generally due within 90-180 days from
the date of billing.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers. At the end
of the reporting period, 15% (2012: 19%) and 53% (2012:
51%) of the total trade and other receivables were due
from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statements of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance.

B8

MENE T ~ R HNES @ BR R 7N &R

BENBEXRFBRPELE - NEBBHZ
SER MAEBRANEEZSRARN
571 %5 @ B S 3B SR KRB AR RS # B -

(a)

e

REBNGEERREZREES N
Hih B - EREBLHIGTEE N
RURKEEEERMARNGE

@12 -

MEDREMEBEARMS  KES
SHMBEPETERB NG -
ZENBEEPREFLPHNBEERE
HARRIR 8042 8% & B Bl 6042 R BE
TBERELPNFTERBEMIUAR
ERESPREEXFNKERIRENSE
t-BRBER—BRNBEBLRLZH
H5t90£ 1808 NEHA -

REBRASNGERREIERS
BPNBEAKEMTEMFESPE
EXRBFMRENTRIER A
SERSEEPHNBERERRER
REBHERSFESERNEARK
BEEE - KBRS HKR 15% (2012
F 1 19%) K 53% (20124 1 51%) BN 8
o K B Ath FE URR AR &R 90 Bl /R & UK
SENRASPRKAKXKEPHIRIA -

REBRASXNESECERRKRBE
HREOREZREBE REeWHR
MENSENEENKRBE -
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Credit risk (Continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 16.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the chairman of the Group when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels
of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

Interest rate risk

The Group does not have significant exposure to interest
rate risk as it does not expect interest rate fluctuation
would have any significant impact on the fair value or
cash flows of its cash and bank deposits held as at 31
December 2013.

Currency risk

As the Group's principal activities are carried out in the
PRC, the Group's transactions are mainly denominated
in Renminbi, which is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving
Renminbi must take place through the People’s Bank
of China or other institutions authorised to buy and
sell foreign exchange. The exchange rates adopted
for the foreign exchange transactions are the rates of
exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China that are
determined largely by supply and demand.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

=)
ERAEERS SR 2 thERRT
DHNESEARNE - SEBRE
HHURMIEE16 o

meNE & @R

REBRNERNEE@EESER
SHREEE AR RBBRNR
HKRENRSEERLAENRNNIR
EHEK ERERBEE TREN
RIEKF  MANSREBESE
- REEBHNERTIEMNERRM
NEEFRNREBERFZNETIS
o RERAEESTHBHEERNE
T2cREBIRHBHONAGESE
T AETRAKRKHORIES

Ko

il 5 @ 1R

REBUEAREAN @R IR
AN2ERBRBUERH NS HR
2013F 12B31 BAMKHIIR T NIRT
FRORBEIRERESME
PIEARFE -

S = bR
BRAEENETEEREPBE
7 REBNIREBINARES
fEo AR S5 BRI -
B R A R 009 B X BB B
8 o B A R 88 17 ot . fth 15 1 & E 91
DEE €10 14 8 3 1 = M BFE 52 5 4% R 0
=5 ch B A RIE 1T AT RBER « 3%
EREEMHREE
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, cash at bank that
were placed with banks in the PRC amounted to
RMB721,037,000 and RMB955,981,000 respectively.
Remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the
exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

The Group had no significant foreign exchange exposure
as at 31 December 2013, as the turnover generated from
export sales of the Group was insignificant.

Fair values

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
is determined by using the forward exchange rates at
the end of the reporting period and comparing to the
contractual rates, with the resulting value discounted
back to the present value.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2013
and 2012. The carrying values of the Group's financial
instruments approximate their fair values because of the
short maturities of these instruments.

25 Commitments

(a)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2013
not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

24

25

BEREREE N REBA @

(d)

(e)

S B 3] bR (@)

MN2012F KR 2013F 128318 N
PERTHRTERDIBARE
721,037,0007T & A R 955,981,000
T RHETEDPEHIFIN - MAE
STPEEFRNBIINESH -

BRAEERBORERELENE
FRMARE RNEBR2013F12
B 318 il & < & KN @R

niEfE

ZINESKHNL R BEUARSH
RORPEXEE WHREHER
Bt KPS EERIREEREE -

R20135F 20125128318 » IR &
BeRIEBNKREOERELRER
THEEAD REBeRILEN
REBBEBREARBEIMBS  W/3B
2SI ENZHERGH -

R IE

(a)

FR2013F 128318 W R R/ F R *E
FEBBHNRENERAELN

The Group
REE
At 31 December
m128318
2013
RMB’000
AREF R

2012
RMB’000
ARET T

B25T4

Contracted for
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25 Commitments (Continued) 25 AIE @

(b) At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum lease (b)  AR20135%F 1283108 IR ¥ /AN O] # 88
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are KEHERNINRRRRBET TR
payable as follows: RN

The Group
REE
At 31 December
"128318
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREET T

Within 1 year 1R 5,849
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FEBER 16,008
21,857
During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013, B 2£2012F KX2013F 128318 IEF
the Group is the lessee in respect of items of offices in B AEBREEHENMENS
Hong Kong and Beijing held under operating leases. BRI RMRZIRE R ATE A - il
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to five E—RYTBH—Z2QhFE TS
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms EBRMERMREIRESTEMEE -
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent THEMMESHNEMEE °
rentals.
26 Material Related Party Transactions 26 EAREBEAXS

In addition to the related party information disclosed FR7E 1 5 3R 22 HLth 3B 0 P R 22 BN RA B 15

elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group entered into SN IREB 251 NI E KBS 3L

the following material related party transactions. K

During the year, the directors are of the view that the following FR FEBRRBUARNDAEBNREE S -

is related party of the Group:

Name of party Relationship

BRhEE 8 &R

Fujian Province Jinjiang City Haosha Garments 55% and 25% owned by Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi

Co., Ltd* ("Haosha Garments”) Hongyan respectively
BRESIMELRRERNT (NEDRK]) B0 Tt 7R o A R it I EE 5t A= 90 Bl 8 S 55% A 25%
* The English translation of the company’s name is for reference only. The *REEWHNANHEERSE - ZLINERS

official name of the company is in Chinese. TBRP -
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26 Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

(a) Key management personnel
remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of
the Group, including amounts paid to the Company's
Directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as
follows:

26 BARBARX S @

(a) T2EBASHM

REBITZEEBAENFHI(2EM
SETRERT P RLIESHMIR
AR M I8 AT IRENR I PETRS
FENEENRIR W :

Year ended 31 December

HE12HIBLEFE

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETIT ARETIT

Short-term employee benefits RiBfERE®RN 5,469

Equity settled share-based payments DARE 73 %5 B DARR 0 S 15 2,793
Contributions to defined contribution FRE KR ST B R

retirement plans 436

8,698

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” [(note
5(b)).

(b) Transactions with related party

MA W25t ATE AR ] (K s
5(b)) °

(b) BRRAEE IR Z

Year ended 31 December

HZE12B31HLEE

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREF T ARBFIT
Purchases of products 48 8 E 6o
— Haosha Garments —HEWRIK 1,874
Receiving processing services EHNEZEEN TR
— Haosha Garments —EDHEK 28,679

Purchases of land use right (tax included)

BE T EAIE (BEHE)

— Haosha Garments —EWERK

(c) Balance with related party

As at the end of the reporting period, trade and
other balance due to Haosha Garments amounted to
RMB17,218,000 (2012: RMB92,000). The amount to
Haosha Garments is unsecured, interest free and is
expected to be paid within one year.

(c) EEARAHE S BVES &R

RBEMKR - BEBEDPHRXNES
NKEMBSERR A RE17,2180007T
(20125 © AR #592,0007T) - FESIS
WEREXHORIBERERS  RRIRFE
ME-—FAZNT -
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Immediate and Ultimate Controlling Party

At 31 December 2013, the Directors consider the immediate
controlling party of the Group to be Ho Born Investment
Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. This entity does not produce financial statements
available for public use. The Directors consider the ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be Mr. Shi Hongliu.

Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but
not yet Effective for the Year Ended 31
December 2013

Up to the date of issue of this report, the IASB has issued a
number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2013 and which have not been adopted in preparing the
financial statements.

S 5 e 3 B R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

27

28

(FREBE1EAIN - IILA A REESI )

BREKKEREGR

20135128318  EBRBREENE
?ﬂ’Lﬁ?'JEm/ BREERBRLD Mz
RENRBERESEMANIL - ZBEEUW
BREIJHLHESRNV B RE - EFR
RSB RREF DRI TE -

B ZE2013F12B3MNBILEFEE
ﬂEfFEiE*:FEQSZB’\]ﬂ%ET ~ HT 5] %E
A2 MO RER &

BEERRSTIHON BRSstEUEE
SPRMESIBREE2013F128318 LEF
B REBIEST ~ AT ERI R ERE - M
mRIFRRT W EIRNZEZEE] W8]
HEQIR TR TE -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on
or after

NV =R v
F16 B9 S 5t AR 2%

Amendments to IFRS 32

Financial instruments: presentation

1 January 2014

— offsetting financial assets and liabilities

B0 B 51 % ¥ S BRI S5 325 BYE E]
IFRS 9

B R 8 5 R S HE R SR 9 5% EMIE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated

financial statements.

Financial instruments

EMIE: 2/ -RBYFEEKERE
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AR B R

Balance Sheets EE8Ex

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARSTT

Non-current assets FEREBMEE
Property, plant and equipment L ERN NS 46,200 48,413 51,868 15,839
Construction in progress TRl - - - 10,953
Lease prepayments s 11,620 11,862 12,104 -
Intangible assets myEE 190 178 151 231
Deferred tax assets ELEMIBE &= 6,869 7,857 5,277 3279
Total non-current assets FREBEERE 64,879 68,310 69,400 30,302
Current assets meEnE E
Inventories & 151,409 102,193 100,061 51,376 131,017
Trade and bill receivables SR EWRNERRE 247,274 252,398 210,070 180,823 68,101
Deposits and prepayments b5l S L ENE N 17,693 13,866 14,633 19,591 15,595
Other receivables H b & R 3,991 5,938 1,954 14,249 5,513
Amounts due from directors ERESRIA - - — 12,109
Amounts due from related parties & U B8 B 5 7R 1B — - 74,540 68,742
Other assets Hith& = = = 1,722 =
Pledged deposits PERER 17,684 98,278 13,171 37,920 13,240
Cash at bank and in hand* RITERNFRIRE" 1,059,149 730,513 635,617 83,827 15,645
Total current assets mEERE 1,497,200 1,203,186 975,506 464,048 329,962
Total assets EE0E 1,578,903 1,268,065 1,043,816 533,448 360,264
Current liabilities )mij],%‘ii
Bank loans RITIER 86,890 — 98,800 126,880
Trade payables f’f%ﬁﬁm 28,231 20,771 12,127 41,145
Bill payables ENES 46,447 62,259 77,306 48,860
Receipts in advance AW R 1,042 3,344 4,293 5,010
Other payables and accruals Hith &R fEst & B 41,305 63,403 31,834 17,754
Amounts due to related parties &I RA R DR IB = = 3,406 =
Derivative financial liabilities NMETHaRE 933 = = =
Current taxation RIEATR I8 11,120 16,808 8,291 =
Total current liabilities/ rEI=REE Y

Total liabilities SEM®E 182,847 215,968 166,585 236,057 239,649
Shareholders’ equity AR SR &= 1,396,056 1,052,097 877,231 297,391 120,615

iabilities and equity EERERBAE 1,578,903 1,268,065 1,043,816 533,448 360,264

* B FHRABB=ERNIRTERTER

ded fixed deposits held at banks with maturity over three months.



Income Statements

Continuing operations: BEREXRKE
Turnover SR

Cost of sales 55 5 AR
Gross profit E

Other revenue HibUr A

— Interest income —MEWA

— Rental Income —HEBA

— Government grants -~ BB

— Others — A

Other net income/(loss)

HfbUg A/ (B518) 3 8

— Exchange gain — B2l

— Others —Afth

Selling & distribution expenses BH &5 R AE B AR

Administrative and other THREHEDEE
operating expenses (553

Profit from operations KEnE

Finance costs 871 5 AR

Profit before tax BR e & )8

Income tax (expenses)/benefit

S (Fs2), /W&

Profit for the year from continuing &L & #£ K5
operations FENE

Discontinued operations: RIEEER

Profit from discontinued operations — #R 1F £5 &5 % 5% (0 ) 9

Net gain on disposal of HEME AT
subsidiaries, machinery % 88 S S & B0
and equipment W iFEn

Profit for the year FEME

Exchange differences on & PR R IE I
translation of financial bt 8 2 B 00 B S R =%
statements of operations B B oo 2= 52
outside the mainland China

Earning per share SRR

— basic and diluted (RMB]) —BERKEE

(AR% 1)
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MR
Wam &

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETIT ARETRT ARETIT ARETIT
1,021,520 848,063 695,168 347,787 159,169
(431,209) (333,874) (262,552) (178,382) (96,253
590,311 514,189 432,616 169,405 62,916
11,735 6,057 1,074 415 104
- = 103 1,175 =
12,999 17,786 3,380 338 560
771 3,783 16 = =
25,505 27,626 4,673 1,928 b4
5,457 695 268 (380) 66
(2,682) (1,010) 72 1 (2)
2,775 (315) 340 (379) bl
(104,537) (91,499) (65,331) (29,122) (23,737)
(75,223) (70,414) (55,086) (26,695) (10,041)
438,831 379,587 317,212 115,137 29,866
(398) (568) (1,544) (6,382) (2,640)
438,433 379,019 315,668 108,755 27,226
(68,074) (47,907) (41,937) (14,380) 1,382
370,359 331,112 273,731 94,375 28,608
_ — 4,135 79
= = 17,596 =
370,359 331,112 273,731 116,106 28,687
(7,513) (175) (638) - —
362,846 330,937 273,093 116,106 28,687

0.21 0.22
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1o 4 A %5 B 22
Major Financial Ratios FTEGIRL R
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
A. Profitability ratios: A BiHgENEE =R :
1. Growth 1. BR
a. Turnover growth a. EXRRIEER 20.45% 21.99% 99.88% 118.50% (22.22%)
b. Net profit growth b. FNEEBR 9.64% 21.18% 135.21% 304.73% (0.96%)
2. Profit margins 2. A=
a. Gross profit margin a. EME 57.79% 60.63% 62.23% 48.71% 39.53%
b. Operating profit margin b. RERER 42.96% 44.76% 45.63% 33.11% 18.76%
c. Net profit margin c. PR 35.52% 39.02% 39.28% 27.14% 17.97%

3. Returnon equity/total assets 3. &%/ MREEOQRK

a. Return on equity a. B@Om=E 29.64% 34.31% 46.50% 55.55% 26.99%
b. Return on total assets b. RMEEQREK 25.49% 28.63% 34.63% 25.98% 10.05%
B. Liquidity ratios: B. MEan&EE =%
1. Liquidity ratios 1. REETHE
a. Current ratios a. mEH X 557 5.86 1.97 1.38
b. Quick ratios b. RENL = 5.10 5.26 1.75 0.83
2. Turnover ratios 2. AEH=x
a. Stock turnover days a. FEREOH 110.55 105.26 122.6] 252.59
b. Debtors’ turnover days b. EUWERMEE O 99.71 103.53 99.00 94.10
c. Creditors” turnover days ¢ ENEREEOH 86.21 119.88 113.42 194.12
C. Capital Adequacy ratios: C. EMTRHE:
1. Gearing ratio 1. B8ferx
a. Gearing ratio a. Bfet=x
— bank loans —IRITER 6.85% — 18.52% 35.22%
b. Gearing ratio b. BEHX
— bank loans & —RITER
bills payables KENZ®& 10.51% 5.96% 33.01% 48.78%
2. Debt to net worth ratio 2. BRFELE
a. Debt to equity ratio a. BERRLX 4.37% 12.67% 7.10% 59.22% 145.70%
b. Interest coverage b. MREMX 1,100.78 668.29 205.45 18.04 11.31
3. Effective tax rate 3. BEMm=E 15.53% 12.64% 13.29% 13.22% (5.08%)
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